
The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

CITY OF LA PINE, OREGON 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Wednesday, June 11, 2025, 5:30 p.m. 
La Pine City Hall: 16345 Sixth Street, La Pine, Oregon 97739 

Available online via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88513718684 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours before the meeting to City Hall at (541-536-1432). For deaf, hearing impaired, or speech disabled 
dial 541-536-1432 for TTY. 

The Regular City Council meeting is a business meeting of the elected members of the La Pine City 
Council, in which matters that have come before the City in application, or legislatively/judicially by 
process can be acted upon under Old and New business. Matters that are not formally before the City 
or have yet to be initiated by application cannot be officially acted upon. If any party would like to 
initiate an action through process or application, city administrative staff are available during the 
regularly scheduled business hours of City Hall to provide assistance. 

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER 

ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ADDED AGENDA ITEMS  

Any matters added to the Agenda at this time will be discussed during the “Other Matters” portion of 
this Agenda or such time selected by the City Council 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public Comments provide an opportunity for members of the community to submit input on ongoing 
matters within the city. 

Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person; when asked to the podium, please state 
your name and address. This helps the City Council and staff determine if you are a city resident. The 
acting chair may elect to respond to comments if the matter is within the jurisdiction of the city or defer 
to city staff for response. Any matter that warrants testimony and rebuttal may be debated only during 
a Public Hearing on the matter. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Information concerning the matters listed within the Consent Agenda has been distributed to each 
member of the City Council for reading and study, is considered to be routine, and will be enacted or 
approved by one motion of the City Council without separate discussion. If a separate discussion is desired 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88513718684


  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  JUNE 11, 2025 
 

 

The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

concerning a particular matter listed within the Consent Agenda, that matter may be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and placed on the regular agenda by request of any member of the City Council. 

1. 05.28.2025 City Council Meeting Minutes ................................................................................ 3. 
2. Financial Reports for April 2025 

a. Financial Summary ......................................................................................................... 7. 
b. Interest Report ............................................................................................................... 11. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Resolution 2025-06 Making Appropriations and Declaring the Tax Rate for the FY 25-26 Budget 
a. Approved Budget Document ......................................................................................... 12. 
b. Resolution 2025-06  ....................................................................................................... 96. 

2. La Pine Community Identity 
a. Staff Report .................................................................................................................... 98. 
b. Goals and Desired Outcomes ......................................................................................... 100. 

3. Newberry Neighborhood/Cagle Subdivision Master Plan Discussion 
a. Staff Report .................................................................................................................... 101. 
b. Letter from Deschutes County CDD ............................................................................... 104. 

4. Republic Services 
a. Staff Report .................................................................................................................... 105. 

i. Republic Master Spreadsheet ............................................................................ 108. 
ii. Republic Spreadsheet Summary ........................................................................ 109. 

iii. Republic Services Financial Analysis (Graph) ..................................................... 110. 
b. Republic Services Documents ........................................................................................ 111. 
c. Resolution 2025-07 (3%) ................................................................................................ 115. 
d. Resolution 2025-07 (6%) ................................................................................................ 117. 

OTHER MATTERS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public Comments provide an opportunity for members of the community to submit input on ongoing 
matters within the city. 

Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person; when asked to the podium, please state 
your name and address. This helps the Planning Commission and staff determine if you are a city 
resident. The acting chair may elect to respond to comments if the matter is within the jurisdiction of 
the city or defer to city staff for response. Any matter that warrants testimony and rebuttal may be 
debated only during a Public Hearing on the matter. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: per ORS 192.660 if necessary 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



 

The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

 

CITY OF LA PINE, OREGON 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Wednesday, May 28, 2025, 5:30 p.m. 
La Pine City Hall: 16345 Sixth Street, La Pine, Oregon 97739 

Available online via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81836918749 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Earls called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

Council 

Mayor Earls 

Council President Ignazzitto 

Councilor Shields 

Councilor Morse 

Councilor Curtis 

Student Councilor Marston 

Staff 

Geoff Wullschlager – City Manager 

Brent Bybee – Community Development Director 

Amanda Metcalf – City Recorder 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Earls led the Pledge of Allegiance 

ADDED AGENDA ITEMS  

City Manager Wullschlager added to the agenda a draft letter to the Bureau of Land Management 
(BLM). 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. 05.14.2025 Regular City Council Minutes 

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81836918749


  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  MAY 28, 2025 
 

 

The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 
 

Council President Ignazzitto made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Councilor Shields seconded 
the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Three Rivers Mosquito & Vector Control – Mr. Ed Horvath 

Ed Horvath, the owner of Three Rivers Mosquito and Vector Control, gave a presentation on the 
services his business provided for the City. He outlined his professional background and described the 
areas currently serviced by his company. He discussed his goals as a city-contracted vector control 
provider and presented a map indicating the areas he regularly fogged. Additionally, he outlined future 
plans and initiatives, which included increasing public education, relocating their office to La Pine, 
incorporating aerial support, and working towards the establishment of a mosquito control district.  

There were no questions or concerns raised by the Council. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Mayor Earls requested City Manager Wullschlager to present his added agenda item to the Council. 
City Manager Wullschlager introduced a draft letter addressed to the Bureau of Land Management 
(BLM), emphasizing persistent public safety concerns regarding wildfire risks. He read the letter aloud, 
noting that the BLM had recently closed 40 acres of land between Bend and Redmond as a 
preventative measure against human-caused fires. He urged the Council to support a similar regulatory 
strategy for the City of La Pine, aligning with comparable actions taken across Deschutes County. He 
also recounted the City’s previous efforts in wildfire mitigation, including past initiatives and clean-up 
operations aimed at minimizing fire hazards. The Council discussed the letter and decided in favor of 
supporting it. 

City Manager Wullschlager answered a question from the Council regarding previous requests to BLM. 
He stated that the previous requests had gone unanswered by BLM.  

Mayor Earls asked Lieutenant Spano if the Deschutes County Sheriff’s Office had also made the same 
request to BLM. Lieutenant Spano stated that he had made similar requests, and they were told that 
BLM would not close the federal land for fire mitigation. 

Councilor Morse made a motion to sign the letter to BLM. Council President Ignazzitto seconded the 
motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

1. Review of Public Hearing Procedures 

Community Development Director Bybee informed the Council that a public hearing for the 
comprehensive plan update would be held in June. He emphasized the importance of reviewing public 
hearing procedures in advance to ensure the Council was prepared for the upcoming meeting. He 
outlined the procedural steps and the specific verbiage mandated by the City’s land use code that the 
Council would need to use during the hearing. He concluded by explaining the proper process for 
making a motion during a meeting and stressed the importance of using precise and appropriate 
verbiage. 

4



  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  MAY 28, 2025 
 

 

The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 
 

OTHER MATTERS 

Other matters were discussed in New Business. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

City Recorder Metcalf did not have any comments. 

Community Development Director Bybee gave an update on long-range planning. He explained that 
June 25th was scheduled for the public hearing with the City Council for the comprehensive plan 
update. He stated that staff had not received any testimony in opposition; however, staff did receive a 
comment from DLCD, and the comments were incorporated into the plan and approved by the 
Planning Commission, which had made a recommendation for approval to the City Council. He clarified 
that two public hearings were scheduled for the 25th, one for the comprehensive plan and one for the 
comprehensive plan map. Additionally, two ordinances would need to be presented to the Council for 
adoption. 

He also provided an update regarding the Transportation System Plan (TSP) update, noting that a 
consultant had been chosen and they were working on the final stages of the agreement. He stated he 
would keep the Council updated and was hopeful that the TSP update would be kicking off soon. 

He informed the Council that he had been coordinating with Community Planning Assistance for 
Wildfire (CPAW), which had been working on overall recommendations for the City. Although they had 
issues with their federal funding, they had secured enough private funding to keep moving forward. He 
stated that at the next City Council meeting, he would present the recommendations to the Council. 

Director Bybee gave an update on current planning applications, stating that staff had received quite a 
few that were incomplete. The spec building in the Newberry Business Park had finished its appeal 
period and received final approval. For Type II applications, staff had received partitions in the Cagle 
Subdivision; four were incomplete and two were waiting for payment. Lastly, for Type IV applications, 
there was a text amendment proposal. 

City Manager Wullschlager stated that he was currently reviewing contracts. The Deschutes County 
Sheriff’s Office (DCSO) was under review, and he noted that there would be a slight annual inflation 
increase from 5% to 6%. He also is reviewing the annual Republic Services franchise agreement, stating 
that they were requesting a 6% fee increase compared to the usual 3% from the previous year. He was 
in discussions with Republic Services regarding the reason for the higher increase. 

He provided an update on the construction easement for the Newberry lift station and the land 
purchase from Deschutes County. He confirmed that all documentation was recorded and that 
Anderson Perry was serving as the construction management firm. A new 10-inch main would relieve 
the other lift station, and the Public Works Department would no longer need to pump the lift station 
at night. 

He stated that he attended the city managers meeting on the 15th, which this year was limited to 
managers from Deschutes County. He noted that La Pine was given equal attention and consideration 
throughout the discussions. 

5



  
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  MAY 28, 2025 
 

 

The City of La Pine is an Equal Opportunity Provider 
 

Lastly, on the 16th of the month, he met with the contractor for the city-owned spec building. He 
expressed satisfaction with the meeting and the progress of the project. 

MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Student Councilor Marston gave an update that both the baseball team and track team would be going 
to the state playoffs. He stated that seniors would be released from school early and noted that this 
would be his last City Council meeting. He asked the Council if there was anything they would like him 
to bring to the school on their behalf. Council President Ignazzitto asked if prospective students could 
send in letters explaining why they would want to be the next student councilor. 

Councilor Morse did not have any comments. 

Council President Ignazzitto did not have any comments. 

Councilor Curtis thanked everyone for the work they had done. 

Councilor Shields stated that he appreciated the time Mr. Horvath had dedicated to Vector Control. 
Councilor Curtis asked if the Council could encourage citizens to implement mosquito mitigation on 
their properties. City Manager Wullschlager stated that he was currently updating the City’s website 
with informative pages regarding mosquito control and information from Three Rivers. 

Mayor Earls thanked City Manager Wullschlager for delivering the Memorial Day speech in her 
absence. She also mentioned that she was a voting member of the Oregon Mayor’s Association for 
their means and bylaws. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: per ORS 192.660 if necessary 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Earls adjourned the meeting at 6:43 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

________________________________Date:____________ 
Jeannine Earls, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________Date:____________ 
Amanda Metcalf, City Recorder 

6



 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

April 30, 2025 
 

 

TOTAL RESOURCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL  

 AS OF APRIL 30, 2025  

  Year   FY 2024-25   Budget   (83% lapsed)  

  To Date   Budget   Remaining   % Earned  

 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE               17,587,219       17,587,219                          -    100.0% 

 PROPERTY TAXES                     475,585             457,500              (18,085) 104.0% 

 MOTEL TAXES                     152,895             156,000                   3,106  98.0% 

 SHARED REVENUES & GRANTS                 5,651,015         5,609,797              (41,218) 100.7% 

 CHARGES FOR SERVICES                 2,119,423         2,210,575                 91,152  95.9% 

 FRANCHISE FEES                     334,267             328,225                 (6,042) 101.8% 

 SDC's & OTHER INCOME                 1,619,201         1,196,700            (422,501) 135.3% 

              27,939,604       27,546,016            (393,588) 101.4% 

 7



 

Year FY 2024-25 Budget (83% lapsed)

To Date Budget Remaining % Earned

GENERAL FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,870,326              2,870,326      -                    100.0%

PROPERTY TAXES 475,585                  457,500         (18,085)            104.0%

SHARED REVENUES & GRANTS 135,998                  85,000            (50,998)            160.0%

MOTEL TAXES (30%) 45,874                    56,000            10,127             81.9%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2,842                      16,375            13,533             17.4%

FRANCHISE FEES 100,283                  105,075         4,792                95.4%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME 791,877                  69,500            (722,377)         1139.4%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN 400,000                  554,750         154,750           72.1%

4,822,784              4,214,526      (763,008)         114.4%

CEMETERY FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 42,013                    42,013            -                    100.0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 450                          1,200              750                   37.5%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           -                  -                    

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME -                           700                  

42,463                    43,913            750                   96.7%

STREETS FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,681,883              1,681,883      -                    100.0%

SHARED REVENUES & GRANTS 187,984                  645,000         457,016           29.1%

FRANCHISE FEES 233,984                  223,150         

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME 4,875                      17,000            12,125             28.7%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN 325,000                  325,000         -                    100.0%

2,433,726              2,892,033      469,141           84.2%

TOURISM FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 360,557                  360,557         -                    100.0%

MOTEL TAXES 107,021                  100,000         (7,021)              107.0%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME -                           3,500              3,500                INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           -                  -                    #DIV/0!

467,578                  464,057         (3,521)              100.8%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 510,293                  510,293         -                    100.0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 62,893                    40,000            (22,893)            157.2%

ADVANCED PLANNING FEES 40,953                    45,000            4,047                91.0%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME 6,575                      51,000            44,425             12.9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN 155,000                  155,000         -                    100.0%

775,714                  801,293         25,579             96.8%

INDUSTRIAL/ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,924,327              1,924,327      -                    

SHARED REVENUES & GRANTS 120,000                  29,771            (90,229)            403.1%

INDUSTRIAL SITE LEASES / SALES 183,522                  17,500            (166,022)         1048.7%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME -                           30,000            30,000             0.0%INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           -                    #DIV/0!

2,227,849              2,001,598      (226,251)         111.3%

RESERVE FUND - WATER/SEWER

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 452,670                  452,670         -                    100.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           400,000         400,000           0.0%

452,670                  852,670         400,000           53.1%

DEBT RESERVE FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 193,503                  193,503         -                    100.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           734,227         734,227           0.0%

193,503                  927,730         -                    20.9%

EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           285,000         285,000           0.0%

-                           285,000         -                    0.0%

SDC FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,665,141              4,665,141      -                    100.0%

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 731,068                  920,000         188,932           79.5%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           250,000         0.0%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME -                           15,000            15,000             0.0%

5,396,209              5,850,141      188,932           92.2%

WATER FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,251,078              3,251,078      -                    100.0%

GRANT REVENUE 2,312,282              1,547,526      (764,756)         149.4%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 875,594                  1,018,000      142,406           86.0%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME 77,605                    34,500            (43,105)            224.9%

6,516,559              5,851,104      (665,455)         111.4%

SEWER FUND

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,635,428              1,635,428      -                    100.0%

GRANT REVENUE 2,853,798              3,302,500      448,702           86.4%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 994,122                  1,117,500      123,378           89.0%

MISCELLANEOUS & OTHER INCOME 7,201                      10,500            3,299                68.6%INTERFUND TRANSFERS - IN -                           -                    #DIV/0!

5,490,549              6,065,928      575,379           90.5%

RESOURCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL BY FUND

 AS OF APRIL 30, 2025 

8



FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
April 30, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

Year FY 2024-25 Budget (83% lapsed)

To Date Budget Remaining     

PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,204,664       2,028,155    823,491       59.4%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 1,248,672       3,181,650    1,932,978    39.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,767,752       9,810,626    583,835       79.2%

DEBT SERVICE 135,250           1,192,908    1,057,658    11.3%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 2,299,227       2,703,977    373,000       85.0%

12,655,565     18,917,316  4,770,962    66.9%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
 AS OF APRIL 30, 2025 

9



 

Year FY 2024-25 Budget (83% lapsed)

To Date Budget Remaining % Expended

GENERAL FUND

PERSONNEL SERVICES 143,011           220,497        77,486          64.9%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 347,542           567,700        220,158       61.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 74,816             316,700        241,884       23.6%

DEBT SERVICE 36,847             42,908          6,061            85.9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 480,000           480,000        -                100.0%

1,082,216       1,627,805    545,589       66.5%

CEMETERY FUND

MATERIALS & SERVICES 3,609               24,100          20,491          15.0%

 CAPITAL OUTLAY -                    5,000            5,000            0.0%

3,609               29,100          25,491          12.4%

STREETS FUND

PERSONNEL SERVICES 117,259           272,875        155,616       43.0%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 174,320           293,950        119,630       59.3%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 247,296           970,000        722,704       25.5%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 250,000           261,750        11,750          95.5%

788,875           1,798,575    1,009,700    43.9%

TOURISM FUND

MATERIALS & SERVICES 83,066             125,650        42,584          66.1%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 75,000          75,000          0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT -                    25,000          25,000          0.0%

83,066             225,650        142,584       36.8%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

  PERSONNEL SERVICES 233,453           379,477        146,024       61.5%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 53,588             89,150          35,562          60.1%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 67,043             199,700        132,657       33.6%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT -                    38,750          38,750          0.0%

354,084           707,077        352,993       50.1%

INDUSTRIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

MATERIALS & SERVICES 74,340             220,900        146,560       33.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 47,661             1,506,700    

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 31,750          

122,001           1,759,350    146,560       6.9%

SDC FUND

MATERIALS & SERVICES -                    1,050,000    1,050,000    0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 112,847           1,500,000    1,387,153    7.5%

112,847           2,550,000    2,437,153    4.4%

WATER FUND

PERSONNEL SERVICES 362,215           587,423        225,208       61.7%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 228,835           337,200        108,365       67.9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,195,965       1,810,026    (1,385,939)  176.6%

DEBT SERVICE 98,403             500,000        401,597       19.7%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 1,113,987       1,387,737    273,750       80.3%

4,999,405       4,622,386    (377,019)      108.2%

SEWER FUND

PERSONNEL SERVICES 348,726           567,883        219,157       61.4%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 283,372           473,000        189,628       59.9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 4,022,124       3,427,500    (594,624)      117.3%

DEBT SERVICE 650,000        650,000       0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT 455,240           478,990        23,750          0.0%

5,109,462       5,597,373    487,911       91.3%

EXPENDITURES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL BY FUND

 AS OF APRIL 30, 2025 

10



City Interest Income Revenue Report 

May 2024 – April 2025 

         City Bank Balances – 04/30/2025 

 

 

 

 

Bank 4/29/2025 Rate

LGIP 17,141,740.00$                4.60%

FIB 1,023,977.44$                  4.15%

FIB Checking 2,082,777.01$                  0.00%

WAFD 507,658.38$                      2.94%

WAFD Checking 1,404,575.05$                  0.00%

Xpress 6,773.57$                           0.00%

22,167,501.45$                

 $10,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $30,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $50,000.00

 $60,000.00

 $70,000.00

 $80,000.00

 $90,000.00

INTEREST EARNED (AMOUNT) BY MONTH

 $-

 $10,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $30,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $50,000.00

 $60,000.00

INTEREST (BY BANK) EARNED BY MONTH

 WAFD  FIRST INTERSTATE  LGIP

11



 

 
 

 

  

City of La Pine  

Proposed Budget  

Fiscal Year 2025-2026 

12



La Pine City Council 

Jeannine Earls, Mayor  

Courtney Ignazzitto, Council President 

Mike Shields, Council Member 

Karen Morse, Council Member 

Janis Curtis-Thompson, Council Member 

13



Annual Budget for the City of La Pine 

Fiscal Year 

July 1, 2025—June 30, 2026 

City Management Staff 

Geoff Wullschlager – City Manager 

Ashley Ivans—Finance Director, Budget Officer 

Brent Bybee—Community Development Director 

Budget Committee 

Jeannine Earls, Mayor Rachel Vickers 

Courtney Ignazitto, Council Member Lynn King 

Mike Shields, Council Member Vacant 

Karen Morse, Council Member Vacant 

Janis Curtis-Thompson, Council Member Vacant 

Dillon Marston, Student Representative 

14



Contents 
READER’S GUIDE TO THE CITY OF LA PINE BUDGET............................................................................................................................... - 1 -

CITY OF LA PINE BUDGET MESSAGE FISCAL YEAR 2025 – 26 ................................................................................................................. - 3 -

CITY OF LA PINE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART ........................................................................................................................................... - 7 -

COMMUNITY PROFILE ............................................................................................................................................................................ - 8 -

FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY POLICIES AND GUIDELINES ..................................................................................................................... - 9 -

General Policies .................................................................................................................................................................................. - 9 -

Revenues ............................................................................................................................................................................................ - 9 -

Expenditures .................................................................................................................................................................................... - 10 -

Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................................. - 10 -

Capital Planning ............................................................................................................................................................................... - 10 -

THE BUDGET PROCESS ......................................................................................................................................................................... - 11 -

Citizen Involvement Opportunities .................................................................................................................................................. - 12 -

Changes after Adoption ................................................................................................................................................................... - 12 -

BUDGET CALENDAR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ...................................................................................................................................... - 13 -

BUDGET FAQS (FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS) .............................................................................................................................. - 14 -

Why does a city create a budget? .................................................................................................................................................... - 14 -

What basis of accounting/budgeting does the city use? ................................................................................................................. - 14 -

When does “budget season” start? ................................................................................................................................................. - 15 -

What does city staff do to develop the budget? .............................................................................................................................. - 15 -

How do you know how much money the city will have?................................................................................................................. - 16 -

Can the budget be amended once it is adopted? ............................................................................................................................ - 17 -

Who do I contact for more information? ......................................................................................................................................... - 17 -

BUDGET SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2025-26 .......................................................................................................................................... - 18 -

REVENUE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................................................................................... - 19 -

Property Taxes ................................................................................................................................................................................. - 20 -

Franchise Fees .................................................................................................................................................................................. - 20 -

Planning Revenues ........................................................................................................................................................................... - 21 -

Water Rates ..................................................................................................................................................................................... - 22 -

Sewer Rates ..................................................................................................................................................................................... - 23 -

Water and Sewer SDCs (System Development Charges) ................................................................................................................. - 24 -

Transportation SDCs (System Development Charges) ..................................................................................................................... - 24 -

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY .................................................................................................................................................................... - 25 -

Appropriations by Classification ...................................................................................................................................................... - 25 -

Capital Improvements ...................................................................................................................................................................... - 26 -

Contingencies ................................................................................................................................................................................... - 26 -

15



Personnel Services & Staffing Levels ................................................................................................................................................ - 27 -

Interfund Transfers .......................................................................................................................................................................... - 27 -

KEY PROJECTS BY FUND ....................................................................................................................................................................... - 29 -

General & Cemetery Funds .............................................................................................................................................................. - 30 -

Streets Fund ..................................................................................................................................................................................... - 31 -

Tourism Fund ................................................................................................................................................................................... - 31 -

Community Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................................... - 32 -

SDC (System Development Charges) Fund ...................................................................................................................................... - 32 -

Industrial / Economic Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................... - 32 -

Water Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 33 -

Sewer Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 33 -

OVERVIEW AND CHANGES BY FUND ................................................................................................................................................... - 35 -

General Fund .................................................................................................................................................................................... - 35 -

Cemetery Fund ................................................................................................................................................................................. - 35 -

Streets Fund ..................................................................................................................................................................................... - 35 -

Tourism Fund ................................................................................................................................................................................... - 36 -

Community Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................................... - 36 -

Water & Sewer, Equipment and Debt Reserve Funds ..................................................................................................................... - 36 -

Community Development Operating Reserve Fund ........................................................................................................................ - 36 -

Industrial / Economic Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................... - 37 -

SDC Fund .......................................................................................................................................................................................... - 37 -

Water Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 37 -

Sewer Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 37 -

BUDGET WORKSHEETS BY FUND ......................................................................................................................................................... - 38 -

General Fund .................................................................................................................................................................................... - 39 -

Cemetery Fund ................................................................................................................................................................................. - 52 -

Streets Fund ..................................................................................................................................................................................... - 53 -

Tourism Fund ................................................................................................................................................................................... - 56 -

Community Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................................... - 58 -

Water and Sewer Reserve Fund ....................................................................................................................................................... - 61 -

Equipment Reserve Fund ................................................................................................................................................................. - 63 -

Debt Reserve Fund ........................................................................................................................................................................... - 66 -

Community Development Operating Reserve Fund ........................................................................................................................ - 66 -

Industrial / Economic Development Fund ....................................................................................................................................... - 68 -

SDC (System Development Charges) Fund ...................................................................................................................................... - 71 -

Water Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 73 -

16



Sewer Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... - 77 -

GLOSSARY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE TERMS ........................................................................................................................................ - 81 -

17



READER’S GUIDE TO THE CITY OF LA PINE BUDGET 
This guide is intended to assist readers in finding information in the City’s FY 2025-26 Annual Budget Book. 

Introduction: This section includes the Budget Message, the City’s Organization Chart, and demographic 

information. 

Policies and Budget Development: This section contains the City’s financial and budgetary policies and 

guidelines, an overview of the budget process, the 2025-26 budget calendar and budget frequently asked 

questions (FAQs).  Budget Development Policies are reviewed annually by staff.  

Budget Summary and Overview: This section provides information on La Pine’s budget including a budget 

summary. The budget summary contains revenue summaries for property taxes, franchise fees, state shared 

revenues, intergovernmental services, SDC’s and utility fees. It also contains details on expenditures, transfers, 

and contingencies. Finally, it describes any key projects for the upcoming fiscal year and outlines any major 

changes to our budget by fund. 

Budget Detail: This section includes the itemized detail of the La Pine City Budget broken down by fund. 

References: This section includes a glossary of municipal finance terms.  Additionally, this section contains the 

advertisements for budget committee meetings with affidavits, the City’s resolution declaring municipal 

services, the City’s resolution to receive state shared revenues, the City’s appropriation resolution, and the 

Cities LB-50 authorizing tax to be placed on the tax rolls. 

18



Introduction 

19



CITY OF LA PINE BUDGET MESSAGE FISCAL YEAR 2025 – 26 

Budget Message 

April 28, 2025 

Members of the La Pine City Council and Budget Committee 

As the Budget Officer for the City of La Pine I am honored to provide you with the proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 

2025-26 Budget. This budget is presented as required under Chapter 294 of the Oregon Revised Statutes. 

As we look at the past year, we reflect on the several projects staff have been working on this past year. Of all 

the projects we’ve taken on, the most notable is the Water and Wastewater Expansion Project. I am pleased 

to announce that these large projects will be substantially completed as of April 30th for water and June 30th 

for sewer. Other noteworthy project completions this year are the Comprehensive Plan Update, which is 90% 

complete as of today, and the Eastside Sidewalk Design which is 95% complete.  

Looking into the future, there are other projects on the horizon. Upgrades to City Hall, purchasing equipment 

for the Streets Fund to begin inhouse maintenance of unimproved streets, a Transportation System Plan 

Update, and updates to the Public Works Capital Facilities Plans are just a few of the projects in store for 2025-

26. A comprehensive breakdown of all City Projects for this Fiscal Year is contained in the section titled, Key

Projects by Fund.

Overall Budget 

We have projected revenues to be low and expenses to be high throughout the City’s budget. This is good 

practice in preparing any budget. This promotes building strong reserves by earning more revenue than 

projected and spending less through appropriations.  

This year a new rate resolution will come before the council for recommended adoption. This is common 

practice and is done annually by the City of La Pine. Updating the resolution ensures that City rates are 

reviewed for fairness and are effective. There will be an 18% increase in sewer fees and a 3% increase to water 

fees. The city needs new rate studies for all departments. While staff are hopeful that the Community 

Development Department can undergo a rate study this year, the Public Works Funds will need to wait until 

the Capital Improvement Plans (CIPs) are completed. The current Water and Sewer Rate Studies are almost a 

decade old now and are outdated. These CIPs are expected to be completed this year and are budgeted from 

the SDC Fund. 

        CITY OF LA PINE

16345 Sixth Street — PO Box 2460 

La Pine, Oregon 97739 

TEL (541) 536-1432 — FAX (541) 536-1462 

     www.lapineoregon.gov 

20



The City’s Expenses have changed, albeit minimally, since last year. The most notable change is to Capital 

Outlay, where the Water and Wastewater Projects are accounted for. These projects should be completed by 

June 30, 2025, however, out of an abundance of caution, we are budgeting some capital amounts in case of a 

lapse in completion. Of the $8.7M budgeted to Capital $3.2M is for the Water & Wastewater Expansion, 

$1.75M is for construction to the City’s Spec Building in the Industrial Park, $1.5M is for the Capital 

Improvement Plans, $750,000 is for equipment and side walk expansion in the street fund, $500,000 is for 

Water Mitigation Credits, and $400,000 is for potential improvements at City Hall. The remaining, 

approximately $600,000, is for smaller, but not less important, projects, such as the wrap up of the archway, 

improvements at the transit center, and the Transportation System Plan update.  

Personnel Services has increased slightly – this is due to the addition of 1 staff member, and the proposed cost 

of living increase of 2.9%. Materials and Services are also up, this is mostly due to expenses in the Public 

Works funds.  Debt Service is down as we solidify the new payments from USDA, and other lenders, for the 

Water and Wastewater Project. Contingencies and unappropriated ending fund balance are up slightly. Both 

appropriations result in savings for the City. Overall, those savings are up a little over $1.3M this year from last 

year.  

Budget Overview by Fund 

General Fund 

Property taxes were increased by 3% from the projection of earnings for FY 2024-25. This is consistent with 

the Assessor’s annual estimate. Licensing and permitting fees remain consistent and there is a modest 

increase in the franchise fees. Personnel Services has increased slightly from last year due to the re-

appropriation of staff discussed in the Overview of Changes by Fund section of this document. Materials and 

Services are up due to basic inflationary increases, expected cost for building repairs, and lastly, an increase in 

the meetings/travel/training category for investment into staff, council and planning commission. Capital 

Outlay is up also due to expected costs for building repairs and improvements. Other areas remain consistent 

with last year.   

Cemetery Fund 

The Cemetery Fund’s budget has increased this year. This is due to lack of spending in FY24-25. This year there 

is an increase to Contingency and Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance. Both increases result in savings for 

this fund.   

Streets Fund 

The Streets Fund revenue is down due to a reduction in the expected grant revenue for a TSP update. Last 

year, staff were unsure of the award amount for this grant when we applied, which is why the amount was 

incorrect. Other changes to the revenue include a transfer from the Equipment Reserve Fund to purchase 

equipment for street maintenance. Personnel Services is down due to the re-appropriation of staff, this topic 

is discussed above and in the Overview of Changes by Fund section of this document. Materials and Services 

have increased slightly, due to an increase in projected costs for vehicle repairs. This expense projection is 

based on the prior year’s estimated final expense.  Capital Expenditures have decreased slightly, as have 

transfers. Other amounts remain consistent. 

21



Tourism Fund 

The tourism fund remains the same apart from an increase to the Arts & Culture line item. This is in 

anticipation of some potential branding work that may occur through the Community Development 

Department this year.  

Community Development 

Community Development is receiving an increase to the interfund transfer from the General Fund. This 

coupled with a decrease in Personnel Services is designed to start building reserves for this fund. Contracted 

Services has also increased, this is due to the need for contracted engineering services while the city recruits 

for a City Engineer and Public Works Director. This fund is also contributing to a new reserve fund, the 

Community Development Operating Reserve, this year. This contribution will ideally become an annual 

occurrence for saving.  

Industrial Fund 

Revenues are consistent with last year, except for the transfer in from the General Fund. This transfer 

represents the City’s support for the fund that runs in conjunction with Deschutes County’s support. Capital 

spending is still up, as less work than expected was completed during FY2024-25 on the Spec Building. 

Contingency and Reserve for Future Capital (the savings allocations) remain consistent with last year’s budget. 

Water Fund 

Water Rate projections are in line with last year, noting a 3% increase. Personnel Services is down due to the 

re-appropriation of staff, this topic is discussed in the Overview of Changes by Fund section of this document. 

Capital Outlay is reduced, as expected, due to the completion of the water expansion project. Transfers out 

are up as a result of saving for equipment and rebuilding reserves. Debt service is down because of a clearer 

understanding of debt repayment amounts. All other amounts remain consistent for this year.   

Sewer Fund 

Sewer Rate projections are also in line with last year, noting the 18% rate increase. As with the Water Fund, 

personnel services are down due to the re-appropriation of staff discussed above. Capital Outlay is consistent. 

This is a matter of prudence; in case the Wastewater Expansion project goes beyond the projected completion 

date. Transfers out are consistent with last year, as we are beginning to rebuild our reserve and SDC budgets. 

Debt service remains consistent. Contingency, reserves, and unappropriated ending fund balance are up from 

last year, resulting in more saving for the fund.  

SDC (System Development Charge) Fund 

The SDC fund will be paying for Capital Improvement Plans for transportation, water, and sewer. These plans 

help the city accurately justify SDC rates. Secondly, the SDC fund will continue to support the design and 

construction of the Newberry Lift Station.  

Water and Sewer Reserve / Debt Reserve 

The reserve fund will be receiving transfers-in from both funds. There are no changes to the debt reserve 

fund.  

Equipment and General Reserve Funds 

22



This reserve fund received transfers in the amount of $350,000 from the various public works funds. 

Community Development Operating Reserve Fund 

This reserve fund is new to the City and receives a transfer in of $30,000 from the Community Development 

Fund. The purpose of this fund is to save money for economic downturns and recessions whereby there could 

be financial impacts to the Community Development Fund.  

Conclusion 

It has been a pleasure putting together this document for the city. While the City prepares for the many 

projects underway, or upcoming this year, it will be crucial to save dollars where we can. The ever-changing 

environment of the city is no surprise after the last 4-5 years of growth. I believe that the staff and the council 

do an excellent job of responding to these changes and preparing the best possible future the citizens of 

La Pine.  

Sincerely, 

Ashley Ivans 

Assistant City Manager / Finance Director 

23



CITY OF LA PINE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

Management Staff 

Geoff Wullschlager, City Manager 

Ashley Ivans, Finance Director 

Brent Bybee, Community Development Director 

Citizens of La Pine 

City Council 

City Manager 

Planning Commission Committees 

Administration Community 

Development 

Finance Public 

Works 

24



COMMUNITY PROFILE 

The City of La Pine has an estimated 3,110 residents and is the fourth largest city in Deschutes County. The 

City has seen a substantial population increase since 2007, with the amount of residents having doubled. 

According to PSU, La Pine is the second fastest growing city in Oregon, with a growth rate of 8.2% from 2022—

2023. As a region, La Pine is a growing community that serves over 15,000 people within a 5-mile radius. The 

city encompasses approximately seven square miles, and it is 4,236 feet above sea level. La Pine offers 

unparalleled access to the Cascade Lakes, Deschutes River, Newberry National Volcanic Monument, the 

Oregon Outback, and countless other outdoor recreational opportunities. Large regional employers include 

Sunriver Resort, Mt. Bachelor, Bend-La Pine Public School District, Sunriver Brewing Company, Bi-Mart, and 

Midstate Electric Cooperative. It is fair to say that the City of La Pine will continue to look different with each 

coming year, while still maintaining the small town feel that La Pine has become synonymous with.

City Statistics

Date of Incorporation :    2006 

Government:  Council/Manager 

Area (Square Miles):   6.98 

Annual Av. Snowfall (Inches):      81 

Annual Average Sunny Days:  157 

2024 Census Population:  3,110 

Population Density:       445.55/sq. mi 

Average Household Size:  2.41 

Median Household Income: $54,946 

Total Households:  1,226 

Median Age:  45.8

25



FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY POLICIES AND GUIDELINES 

Sound financial, budgetary, and economic principles are part of creating a solid financial plan. La Pine’s budget 

incorporates the following long-term and short-term financial policies and guidelines. The City strives to 

comply with all state laws governing budgeting and financial transactions, with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) statements. Listed below is a 

summary of the financial and budgetary policies adhered to by the City of La Pine.  

General Policies 

- Financial statements of the City are to be prepared in accordance with GAAP.

- The budget is to be prepared in accordance with Oregon local budget law. The budget is to be adopted

annually, by resolution, no later than June 30th. In keeping with State law, the budget shall be balanced, in

that expected revenues and anticipated expenditures align with each other.

- An external audit shall take place every year. The audit will be completed and submitted to the State no

later than December 31st of the following fiscal year.

- The City will comply annually with all requirements to receive annual State Shared Revenues.

- The budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis for all funds of the City. Under this accounting basis,

revenues are recorded when they are measurable and available, generally within 60 days of year end.

Expenditures are recognized when the liability is incurred except that future long-term obligations are not

recognized until they are mature. For financial statement purposes reported under GAAP, all governmental

funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis for purposes of the audited financial statements.

However, utility funds are reported using the full accrual basis where revenues are recorded when earned

and expenses are recorded at the time the liability is incurred and long-term obligations are recorded

when they become an obligation, regardless of future cash outflow timing.

Revenues 

- A portion of Transient Room Tax (TRT) funds are allocated each year to community groups that help to

support the La Pine citizens.

- One-time revenues will be used for one-time expenditures.

- SDC’s (System Development Charges) collected are governed by state law and are spent using those

parameters.

- Water and Sewer revenues are invested back into those systems.

26



Expenditures 

- Budget control is maintained at the Department level. Expenditure Authority is defined below:

- City Council Over $20,000 

- City Manager Up to $20,000 

- Finance Director Up to $10,000 

- Other Management Up to $2,500

- All other staff Up to $350 

- All fixed assets purchased, and capital projects completed for and/or by the City of La Pine with a cost

of $5,000 or more and with a useful life of more than one year will be capitalized.

- In no case may the total expenditure of a particular department exceed that which was appropriated

by the City Council without a budget amendment approved by the City Council.

Debt 

- Long term debt shall not be issued to finance ongoing operations.

- Short-term borrowing or lease purchase contracts should only be considered for financing major

operating equipment when it is determined to be in the City’s best financial interest.

- Any project funded through the issuance of debt must have a useful life equal to or greater than the

term of financing.

Capital Planning 

- A Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) shall be developed for a five-year or greater period to allow for

appropriate planning.

- The CIP shall be reviewed at least biannually by City Management Staff and by the City Council, as a

part of the goal and work plan setting process.

- Capital projects should:

o Support City Council goals and objectives and prevent the deterioration of the City’s existing

infrastructure and protect its investments in streets, building and utilities.

o Encourage and sustain economic development in La Pine and respond to and anticipate future

growth in the City.

o Increase the efficiency and productivity of city operations.

- The impact of capital projects on the operating budget should always be an important consideration

when evaluating projects for inclusion in the CIP.

- Ongoing operating costs will be a consideration when making a capital purchase.

27



THE BUDGET PROCESS 

The budget process is governed by the City Charter, City 

Ordinances, and State of Oregon Budget Laws. The initial 

tasks such as filing vacancies on the budget committee and 

setting the date for the first budget committee meeting 

begins in December or January. Most of the budget adoption 

process takes place from February through June each year. 

The City Manager, Finance Director and other staff work 

together to allocate spending parameters and estimate 

revenue from January through April to help develop a 

proposed budget.  The Proposed Budget is then submitted to 

the Budget Committee which consists of the Mayor, City 

Councilors, and the Budget Committee. 

Notice of the Budget Committee public hearings, which are held in May, are published in the Bend Bulletin 

and on the City’s website preceding the meeting. At the first Budget Committee meeting, it is typical for the 

Budget Committee to hear community sponsorship requests. In addition to the sponsorship requests the 

Budget Officer delivers the Budget Message. The Budget Message explains the proposed budget and any 

significant changes in the City’s financial position. At the second Budget Committee meeting, usually the day 

immediately after the first, there is continued discussion on the details of the budget. Also at this meeting is a 

Public Hearing declaring the intent to receive and use for funding the State Shared Revenues offered to each 

Oregon city. The public is given a chance to comment or give testimony at either of these two meetings. For 

more information about public involvement, see “Citizen Involvement Opportunities” section below. When 

the Budget Committee is satisfied with the budget, including changes, additions to or deletions from the 

proposed budget, it approves the budget for submission to the City Council. When approving the budget, the 

Budget Committee also approves, by motion, the amount or rate of ad valorem taxes. After the Budget 

Committee approves the proposed budget, the Budget Officer publishes a financial summary and notice of 

budget hearing in the local newspaper. The hearing is held during a regular City Council meeting (in June). The 

purpose of the public hearing is to receive budget related testimony from citizens and provide an opportunity 

to discuss the approved budget with the Mayor and Councilors.  

The City Council has the authority to make some changes to the approved budget. The changes allowed 

28



include adjusting resources, reducing or eliminating expenditures, and /or increasing expenditures on a limited 

basis. Increases of expenditures of the amounts approved by the budget committee are limited to not exceed 

more than $5,000 or 10 percent; whichever is greater. Expenditure increases above those limits require a 

republishing of the budget and an additional hearing. In no case, however, may the City Council increase the 

taxes over the amount approved by the budget committee. The City Council then votes on a resolution, which 

formally adopts the budget, makes appropriations, and levies the taxes, not later than June 30.  

After the budget document is finalized, it is submitted to the County Clerk and the Department of Assessment 

and Taxation, distributed to all members of the budget committee, the City Council and City staff. The 

document is posted on the City’s website www.lapineoregon.gov.  

Citizen Involvement Opportunities 

All meetings of the Budget Committee and City Council are open to the public. Citizens are encouraged to 

provide comments during any of these meetings during the Public Comment portion of the meeting. Citizens 

may also testify before the City Council during the public hearing on the approved budget. The proposed 

budget document will be available for public review at City Hall and on the City’s website for a reasonable 

amount of time prior to the first budget committee meeting. Copies of the entire document, or portions 

thereof, may be requested through the normal process of requesting public records. Public Comment or 

testimony may be provided by: Submitting a written statement by mail, e-mail or at a meeting or public 

hearing; or, speaking to the Committee or Council at their meetings during the public comment opportunities. 

Changes after Adoption 

Once the governing body has enacted the resolutions to adopt the budget, expenditures may not be made for 

any purpose in an amount greater than the amount appropriated, except as allowed by Oregon Revised 

Statute (ORS) (mainly 294.338, 463, 471, 473, and 478). Most changes require formal action in the form of a 

resolution or a supplemental budget. In some instances, a public hearing is required. The ORS sections 

mentioned above provide direction on which formal action is 

needed depending on the specific situation giving rise to the 

needed budget change; however a supplemental budget is 

needed to create a new appropriation or a new fund 

transferring funds where a category of expense does not 

already exist in the adopted budget. Most other situations 

can be handled by resolution.  

29



BUDGET CALENDAR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

Appoint Budget Officer March 12, 2025 

Appoint Budget Committee April 23, 2025 

Publish 1st Notice of Budget Committee Meeting April 22, 2025 
And Public Hearing for Comments from Public 
(Bend Bulletin) 

Publish 2nd Notice of Budget Committee Meeting April 29, 2025 
And Public Hearing for Use of State Revenue  
Sharing (Website Only) 

Budget Message and Budget Committee Meeting May 13, 2025 
Community Sponsorship Presentations 5:30 p.m. 

2rd Budget Committee Meeting and Public Hearing May 14, 2025 
For Use of State Revenue Sharing 5:30 p.m. 

3rd Budget Committee Meeting and Public Hearing May 15, 2025 
(Only If Necessary) 5:30 p.m. 

Publish Notice of Budget Hearing May 28, 2025 
(Bend Bulletin) 

Budget Hearing & Adoption of the Budget  June 11, 2025 
Make Appropriations, Impose and Categorize Taxes  5:30 p.m. 
(City Council) 

Budget Officer: Ashley Ivans, Assistant City Manager / Finance Director 

Finance Staff:  Geoff Wullschlager, Amanda Metcalf and Tina Kemp 

Budget Committee: Jeannine Earls, Courtney Ignazzito, Mike Shields, Karen Morse, and Janis Curtis – 
Thompson, Rachel Vickers, Lynn King 

        CITY OF LA PINE

16345 Sixth Street — PO Box 2460 

La Pine, Oregon 97739 

TEL (541) 536-1432 — FAX (541) 536-1462 

     www.lapineoregon.gov 

30



 BUDGET FAQS (FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS) 

What is a budget?  

A budget is a planning tool. It identifies the work plan for the City for the fiscal year and outlines the financial, 

material, and human resources available to complete the work plan. It also includes general financial 

information about the organization and identifies the policy direction of the City Council under which the 

budget was prepared. The budget is the city’s means of planning and reporting what it intended to do with its 

financial resources and ensure that those dollars are spent as wisely and efficiently as possible.  

The City of La Pine uses a fund-based budget, meaning that accounts of the City are organized based on funds. 

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other financial 

resources. Each fund is considered a separate entity accounted for with a separate set of self -balancing 

accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.  

Why does a city create a budget? 

Oregon state law requires all cities and other governments in Oregon to adopt a budget annually. Oregon local 

budget law (Chapter 294 of Oregon Revised Statutes) gives budget provisions and procedures that must be 

followed during the budgeting process. The budget must be completed by June 30, the day before the start of 

the fiscal year to which the budget applies. Without a budget for the new fiscal year, the city has no authority 

to spend money or incur obligations. A local government's ability to impose a property tax is also tied to the 

budgeting process.  

Even if there were no legal requirement to budget, La Pine would complete a budget anyway. Budgeting 

creates a work and spending plan, which helps to ensure that public funds are spent wisely. The budget 

process allows city staff to review City Council goals and objectives in a formal setting, determine what will be 

required to meet those objectives, develop an implementation plan, and share that information with citizens 

and decision-makers.  

What basis of accounting/budgeting does the city use? 

The budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis for all funds of the City. Under this accounting basis, 

revenues are recorded when they are measurable and available, generally within 60 days of year end. 

Expenditures are recognized when the liability is incurred except that future long-term obligations are not 

recognized until they mature. Each year, the City’s financial position is audited by an independent auditor 

licensed by the State of Oregon to conduct municipal audits. The audited financial statements are presented in 

accordance with GAAP, promulgated by the GASB. The Annual Financial Report presents fund revenue and 

31



expenditure on a GAAP basis to the budgetary basis for comparison purposes. 

When does “budget season” start? 

The budget process for the City of La Pine typically begins in late December each year. Currently, the Finance 

Department begins to review the rate and fee structures, increases in the cost of services and contracts, the 

proposed capital improvement program, and other financial plans. The City Council’s goals and objectives 

guide the budget-making process.  

However, the budget process for the City of La Pine is an ongoing process throughout the year. During each 

fiscal year, new initiatives for services, new regulation, new funding sources, better methods for providing 

existing services, and new concerns are brought forward by citizens and staff to the City Council for discussion, 

study, or implementation. Typically, because we tend to budget very conservatively, new programs or 

initiatives need to wait until the next budget cycle or longer to be fully funded.  

What does city staff do to develop the budget? 

To prepare for the coming budget cycle, staff evaluate current services and identifies issues to be addressed 

during budget hearings. Primary factors considered by staff in making recommendations include:  

- Relevant federal, state or city regulations or needs that affect services provided by a department.

- Council position, policy statement, or consensus regarding a service.

- Service deficiencies that have been identified through complaints, observations, or citizen survey data.

- Demographics, neighborhood data, or trends in demand for services.

- Special interest, neighborhood data, or professional group input or request for service.

- Special studies or reports that have identified a need for a service.

- Annual equipment assessments and inventories, which have identified a deficiency.

Throughout the year the City Council addresses issues and gives staff policy direction for the development of 

the budget. Once that is completed, the staff turns its attention to turning that direction into numbers on 

paper. Factors that will play into budget planning at this point include:   

- The cost of employee salaries can be one of the largest expenditure on the city budget. Therefore, careful

attention is given to any cost-of-living adjustments, or any other major change in the employee salary

schedule.

- Known cost factors including such items as postal rate increases, social security costs, contribution rates to

employee pension and retirement funds, and other similar costs.

- Changes in employee fringe benefits, such as changes affecting vacation policy, overtime, holidays,

32



uniform allowances, health insurance, and sick leave affect expenditures. 

- Required elements of the budget such as insurance costs, utility costs, and vehicle maintenance costs are

developed.

- Capital projects that have been recommended by facility plans or special area land-use plans or have been

requested by citizens.

- General economic fluctuations can be one of the most difficult considerations when preparing a budget. In

recent years even the best economists have encountered difficulty in predicting the performance of the

economy. Also, any local event significantly impacting the local economy is taken into consideration. The

failure or inability to conservatively consider projected economic activity can cause significant financial

problems.

As with the revenue estimates, fiscal prudence demands that expenditure estimates be as accurate as 

possible. The Budget Officer analyzes and reviews the budgets in detail, checking for accuracy and 

reasonableness of projections, and ensuring that all required elements of the budget are correct.  

How do you know how much money the city will have? 

Staff develop projections each year for each type of revenue the city receives. These projections are based on 

knowledge of some factors and assumptions about others. For example, the city could be notified that it will 

receive a $1 million reimbursement grant for a capital project. The capital project is scheduled to last from 

May in one year until September one year later. As a result of the construction schedule, this project will cross 

three fiscal years.  Before revenue projections can be finalized for each fiscal year, the project construction 

(expense) schedule must be set so that reimbursement dates for grant revenues may be determined and 

revenue budgeted as accurately as possible in each fiscal year.  A good example of this situation is the current 

Water and Wastewater Expansion Project, which has span over multiple years.  

Many revenue estimates must be made based on assumptions about general economic conditions and trends. 

For example, development related revenues (building permits, system development charges, and requests for 

new water service connections) are all based on assumptions about what development will do in La Pine 

during the coming year. Revenues estimates are made cautiously since estimating too high may result in 

setting a budget that will not be supported by future revenues.  

Is the budget ever evaluated? 

Throughout the fiscal year, the expenditures and revenues are monitored monthly and compared to the 

budget appropriations. Operating reports are prepared by the Finance Director and provided to the City 

Manager and City Council monthly at Council Meetings.   

33



At the close of the fiscal year, the Annual Financial Report is prepared which reports on the financial condition 

of the City. During the budget process, this information is used to compare the projections of revenues and 

expenditures made during the prior fiscal year to the actual revenues and expenditures for a given fiscal year. 

Current year and future assumptions about revenues and expenditures may be changed depending on how 

close projections were to actual figures.  

Can the budget be amended once it is adopted? 

During the fiscal year, when the city is operating with the adopted budget, changes in appropriated 

expenditures sometime become necessary. These changes can be made mid-year by the City Council. The City 

Council may amend the adopted budget either by passing a transferring resolution, or by adopting a 

supplemental budget. Changes that require moving an existing appropriation from one area of the budget to 

another can normally be made by resolution. A supplemental budget is most often required when new 

appropriation authority is needed.  

Who do I contact for more information? 

All requests for public information in the City of La Pine are handled by the Administrative Assistant, City 

Recorder and City Manager. Please call 541-536-1432, email info@lapineoregon.gov or visit our website at 

www.lapineoregon.gov 

34

mailto:info@lapineoregon.gov
http://www.lapineoregon.gov/


BUDGET SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2025-26 

INTRODUCTION 

This section of the budget document provides an overview of the fiscal information regarding operations of 

the City of La Pine for FY 2025-26. This section begins (below) with a summary of the FY 2025-26 City budget 

that combines all funds by type. The following pages breakdown key categories of revenues and expenditures 

offering a snapshot of the flow of funds to and through the City.  

SUMMARY OF THE ADOPTED BUDGET 

Per state law, the proposed budget for FY 2025-26 is balanced. The City’s projected revenue totals are 

$8,471,088. With an estimated beginning fund balance of $20,277,105, and Transfers In of $2,345,000 the City 

anticipates it will have a total of $31,093,193 in resources to fund services, operations, and projects. A 

consolidated summary of the revenues and expenditures is outlined in the chart below:  

2023-24 

Actual

2024-25 

Adopted

2025-26 

Proposed

Revenue

Beginning Balance 14,269,115$     17,587,219$ 20,277,105$   

Taxes 658,601$    457,500$    477,500$     

Transfers In 720,000$    2,703,977$    2,345,000$    

Franchise Fees 416,963$    328,225$    377,580$     

State Shared Revenues 459,761$    280,000$    410,000$     

Grant Revenue 5,484,368$    5,345,026$    3,477,469$    

Planning Revenues 228,153$    85,000$     140,000$     

Economic Development 58,899$    71,271$     77,076$    

Utility Fees 1,919,367$    2,158,500$    2,569,313$    

SDC Income 1,506,277$    920,000$    521,000$     

All others 868,483$    313,275$    421,150$     

Total Revenues 26,589,987$    30,249,993$ 31,093,193$   

Expenditures by Category

Personnel Services 1,255,003$    2,028,155$    2,178,253$     

Materials & Services 1,724,621$    3,181,650$    3,975,706$     

Capital Outlay 13,321,500$    9,803,926$    8,784,969$     

Transfers Out 420,000$    2,703,977$    2,345,000$     

Debt Service 228,044$    1,192,908$    1,168,000$     

Contingencies -$    1,155,000$    1,990,000$     

Unappropriated / Reserved 9,640,819$    10,184,377$ 10,651,265$   

Special Payments

Total Expenditures 26,589,987$    30,249,993$ 31,093,193$   

Consolidated Financial Summary for all Funds

35



REVENUE SUMMARY 

It is essential to establish revenue projections at the onset of the budget process. These projections provide 

parameters to measure proposed projects and expenditures against. The City is conservative with revenue 

projections to minimize potential revenue

shortfalls and unanticipated economic factors.

When revenue projections are low, the 

additional revenue assists the City in building 

reserve funds and increasing the beginning 

fund balance on the next year’s budget. 

Carryover is essential to the City’s 

sustainability in future years.  

Revenue projections in this year’s budget are 

based on the following assumptions: 

• Property Tax Growth at 3%

• Increase in Water Rates of 3%

• Increase in Sewer Rates of 18%

The revenues for FY 2025-26 balance the expenditures at $31,093,193. Of that figure, $20,277,105 or 65% is 

carryover from previous years constituting the beginning fund balance. This year Utility Service Fees are the 

largest contributors to revenue. This is due to the rate increases listed above.  

City revenues generally come from taxes, State Shared Revenues, franchise fees, planning fees, economic 

development fees, SDC Income and utility fees.  The charts on this page depict these revenues by percentage. 

Grants and Beginning Fund Balances are removed from these charts. These two categories substantially affect 

the charts and do not paint a clear picture 

of where the City’s revenues come from.  

The following pages include additional 

information on the major revenue sources 

utilized by the City of La Pine through 

budgeted expenditures.  

Taxes
11%

Franchise 
Fees
8%

State Shared 
Revenues

6%

Planning 
Revenues

2%

Economic 
Development 

2%

Utility Fees
50%

SDC Income
21%

Budgeted Revenue, without Grants 
and Beginning Fund Balance 

Taxes
12%

Franchise Fees
8%

State Shared 
Revenues

9%

Planning 
Revenues

4%

Economic 
Development 

1%

Utility Fees
37%

SDC Income
29%

FY 2023-24 Actual Revenues, without 
Grants and Beginning Fund Balance

36



Property Taxes 

Description: The City levies a tax amount each year for operations. The levy based on the City’s 

permanent rate is $1.98 per 

thousand dollars of assessed 

value as determined by the 

Deschutes County Assessor’s 

Office. This is the maximum levy 

allowed the City under State 

Law without additional voter 

approval.  

Use: The levy is used to fund daily operations within the General Fund. There are no 

restrictions as to usage. 

Structure: Levy for Operations—$1.98 per $1,000 of assessed valuation in FY 2025-26. 

Assumptions: The City is dependent on residential, commercial, and industrial values in their assessed 

values. Although assessed properties values have rapidly risen over the past couple of 

years, as well as new construction on the tax rolls, the City is conservative in tax growth 

assumptions. Based on conversations with the Deschutes County Assessor’s Office, and 

assumptions stated above, this budget assumes a 3% growth in assessed value.  

Franchise Fees 
Description: Franchise fees are charged to utilities for use of the public right-of-way. The City has 

franchise agreements with TDS Broadband, TDS Telecom, Cascade Natural Gas, 

CenturyTel, Midstate Electric, 

CenturyLink, Republic Services, and 

Light Speed Networks. Each 

franchise is a negotiated contract 

with a percentage of gross revenue 

as the franchise fee. 

Use: There are no restrictions on the use. 

Two years ago the City began depositing a portion of these revenues into the Streets 

Fund rather than facilitating an annual interfund transfer from the General Fund. This is 

the first year that the City has had data that is comparable in this fund. So far, the 

process is working well and helping the street fund to build reserves for streets projects. 

Structure: The fees range in percentage of the gross income by Franchisee. 

Assumptions: Although franchise fees have generally increased each year, they can fluctuate 

depending on large customer usage. The projected revenues of franchise fees in this 

budget are conservative and reflect previous years actuals collected. 

Fiscal Year Property Tax Levy
2022-23 $427,104

2023-24 $464,717

2024-25 Estimate $460,000

2025-26 Proposed $475,000

Fiscal Year Franchise Fees
2022-23 $369,810

2023-24 $416,963

2024-25 Estimate $374,908

2025-26 Proposed $377,580

37



Planning Revenues 

Description: Planning Revenues are generated by planning applications processed by the City. 

Secondarily, they are generated by advanced planning fees. These fees are assessed by 

the Deschutes County Building 

Department on development.   

Use: Planning fees are used to pay for 

the operations and staffing of the 

Community Development 

Department. 

Structure: Planning Fees are based on application type. Advanced planning fees are based on 

building valuation.   

Assumptions: The city is conservatively budgeting this program. When recessions come, Community 

Development Departments historically suffer most because their revenues are based on 

building. The City currently subsidizes this Department from the General Fund.  

Fiscal Year Planning Fees
2022-23 $92,429

2023-24 $228,153

2024-25 Estimate $140,000

2025-26 Proposed $140,000

38



Water Rates 

Description: The City operates and maintains a potable water system within the City of La Pine. 

The City charges for the use and consumption of water. 

Use: The revenue generated by water is used to cover the cost of operations, maintenance, 

administration, and replacement of the water distribution system. 

Structure: There are two components to the City’s water charge. There is a fixed monthly charge 

based on meter size. Volume is calculated at a flat rate per 1000 gallons for commercial 

uses and in a 3-Tier scale based on consumption for residential users.    

Assumptions: Beginning July 1 in FY 2025-26 water rates will increase 3%. This budget includes 

proposed water rates revenues of $1,105,813 based on previous water rate revenues 

and the 3% rate increase. 

Additional  

Information:  The City received a rate study recommendation from FCS Group in 2015 that  

proposed water rates be increased by 3% from FY 2015-16 through FY 2021-22. 

However, rates were not increased from FY20 – FY23. Last year the City raised the rates 

by 6% due to the water and wastewater project debt reserve requirements. The final 

recommended increase of 3% will be implemented this year. This rate study document 

is available at City Hall.  

Residential Commercial

Meter Size MCE Factor

5/8" 1.00 35.51$    35.51$     

3/4" 1.00 35.51$    35.51$     

1" 2.50 88.79            88.79            

1 1/2" 5.00 177.59         177.59          

2" 8.00 284.13         284.13          

3" 16.00 568.26         568.26          

4" 25.00 887.91         887.91          

6" 50.00 1,775.81      1,775.81      

Tier 1: 0-3,600 gal 1.47$     3.07$    

Tier 2: 3,601-7,200 gal 2.21$     3.07$    

Tier 3: > 7,200 gal 3.69$     3.07$    

$ / MeterFixed Monthly Charges

Volume Charges $ /1,000 gal

39



Sewer Rates 

Description: The City operates and maintains a Wastewater Collection and Treatment System and 

the City charges each user having a sewer connection or otherwise discharging sewage, 

industrial waste, or other liquids into the City’s sewer system. 

Use: The revenue generated by sewer rates is used to cover the cost of operations, 

maintenance, administration, and replacement of the wastewater collection and 

treatment system. 

Structure: The City has two components to its structured sewer rate. Each user pays a monthly 

minimum that is based on Meter Size and MCE (Meter Capacity Equivalent). Also, the 

city uses average winter water usage to calculate Residential discharge. Commercial 

discharge is calculated on monthly water usage. 

Assumptions: Beginning July 1 in FY 2025-26 sewer rates will increase by 18%. This budget includes 

proposed sewer rates revenues of $1,275,000 based on previous sewer revenues and 

the 18% rate increase. 

Additional 

Information: The City received a rate study recommendation from FCS Group in 2015 that sewer 

rates be increased by 10% from FY 2015-16 through FY 2019-20, then by 18% from FY 

2020-21 through FY 2023-24, and then by 6% in FY 2024-25. However, rates were not 

increased from FY20 – FY23. Last 

year the city increased the rates

by 18%. This leaves three

remaining rate increases, the 8% 

remaining from last year, one 

18% increase, and one 6%

increase. The City will increase 

rates by 18% this year. Then the 

City will increase rates by 14% 

(6% recommended and 8% make 

up from FY23). This rate study 

document is available at City 

Hall.  

Meter Size MCE Factor $ / Meter $ / MCE
Total Monthly 

Fixed Charge

5/8" 1.00 19.03$    17.86$    36.90$    

3/4" 1.00 19.03$    17.86$    36.90$    

1" 2.50 19.03$    44.67$    63.70$    

1 1/2" 5.00 19.03$    89.32$    108.36$    

2" 8.00 19.03$    142.92$    161.95$    

3" 16.00 19.03$    285.83$    304.87$    

4" 25.00 19.03$    446.61$    465.65$    

6" 50.00 19.03$    1,123.01$    1,142.05$    

Residential 6.11$    per 1,000 gal of avg. winter water usage [a]

Commercial 11.32$    per 1,000 gal of all water usage

Volume Charge

[a] Average metered water usage between November and February of

previous fiscal year

40



Water and Sewer SDCs (System Development Charges) 

Description: A System Development Charge (SDC) is a one-time fee imposed on new development 

(and some types of re-development) at the time of development. The purpose of this 

fee is to recover a fair share of the cost of existing and planned facilities.  

Use: The revenue generated by SDCs is used to expand infrastructure. Specific ORS regulates 

and restricts what SDC income can be used for.  

Structure: Both water and sewer SDCs are charged based on the size of water meter being installed 

at the development. Rates start at the rate for a 5/8” meter (smallest option) and 

increase by MCE (Meter Capacity Equivalent) as the size of the water meter increases. 

Assumptions: There are no assumptions this Fiscal Year. 

Transportation SDCs (System Development Charges) 

Description: A System Development Charge (SDC) is a one-time fee imposed on new development 

(and some types of re-development) at the time of development. The purpose of this 

fee is to recover a fair share of the cost of existing and planned facilities.  

Use: The revenue generated by SDCs is used to expand infrastructure. Specific ORS regulates 

and restricts what SDC income can be used for.  

Structure: Transportation SDCs are charged based on EDU’s (Equivalent Dwelling Unit) contingent 

on the type of development. A Single-Family Dwelling Transportation SDC is $4,409. 

Assumptions: There are no assumptions this Fiscal Year. 

41



 EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
Under Oregon budget law, the City has the authority to appropriate all revenue sources. As a result, the City of 

La Pine prepares an annual budget for all funds meaning that all money expected to be received as resources 

are appropriated out as expenditures.  

Appropriations by Classification
An important consideration is what 

portion of the budget is being spent on 

certain classifications of expenditure. The 

city budget breakdown includes use of 

seven major classifications: personnel 

services, materials and services, capital 

outlay, transfers, debt service, 

contingency, and 

reserves/unappropriated. Personnel 

Services relate to payroll and staffing. 

Materials and Services are expenditures 

that are related to the operations of the 

fund and are not classified as Capital 

Improvement Costs. Debt Service is the amounts relating to payment of debt for a particular fund. 

Contingencies, Capital Services, and Interfund Transfers are covered in more detail farther into this document. 

The largest category of expenditure in the proposed FY 2025-26 budget is the Unappropriated Ending Fund 

Balance of $10,651,265 (34%). Following in 

second place is Capital Outlay budgeted at 

$8,784,969 (28%). These capital 

expenditures mainly relate to the various 

projects slated for completion by the City 

this year. More information about these 

projects is contained in the Key Projects by 

Fund section in this document. 

The next largest categories are Materials 

and Services ($3,975,706 – 13%), Transfers 

Out ($2,345,000– 8%), and Personnel 

Services ($2,178,253 – 7%). The remaining 

categories of expenditure are Contingency 

($1,990,000 -- 6%), and Debt Service 

($1,168,000 – 4%). 

Personnel 
Services

7%
Materials & 

Services
10%

Capital Outlay
32%

Transfers Out
9%Debt Service

4%

Contingencies
4%

Unappropriated / 
Reserved

34%

FY 2024-25 Budgeted Expenditures

Personnel 
Services

7%

Materials & 
Services

13%

Capital Outlay
28%

Transfers Out
8%

Debt Service
4%

Contingencies
6%

Unappropriated / 
Reserved

34%

2025-26 Proposed Expenditures

42



Capital Improvements 
Capital Outlay includes all anticipated expenditures for individual items with a cost greater than $5,000 and a 

useful life expectancy of one year or more. This budget includes capital investment in all funds except for the 

City’s reserve funds.  

The City prides itself on having the ability to set aside and save for larger capital projects. Specific capital 

projects are detailed later in this budget document in the key projects and the overview of changes by fund 

sections.  

Contingencies 
Appropriations set aside for contingencies are budgeted to allow the City to address emergencies or 

unexpected circumstances that may be used following approval of the City Council. If the City Council 

authorizes the use of contingency funds, the funds are transferred by resolution to the necessary expenditure 

category. There is never an actual expenditure in the classification of Contingency. 

The City budget includes contingencies across operating funds. As a general budget principle, having adequate 

contingencies offers flexibility with unforeseen events. Those funds set aside as contingency that are not 

spent, roll into the following fiscal year, and increase the beginning fund balance. State law requires that 

contingency transfers of greater than 15% of appropriations be handled by a Supplemental Budget Process.    

General Fund 400,000$    

Cemetery Fund 15,000$    

Streets Fund 200,000$    

Tourism Fund 150,000$    

Community Development 75,000$    

Industrial / Economic Development 50,000$    

Water 350,000$    

Sewer 750,000$    

TOTAL CONTINGENCIES BUDGETED 1,990,000$   

Contingency Amounts 

43



Personnel Services & Staffing Levels 
The FY 2025-26 proposed budget includes a total of 15.0 

full-time equivalent (FTE) employees, up from 14.0 FTE 

in FY 2024-25. One FTE equals approximately 2,080 

hours of work each year. Proposed staffing level changes 

in this budget include the addition of an Executive 

Assistant. 

Benefits and Wages are budgeted to increase with 

consideration given to the cost-of-living increases in the 

area over the last 2-3 years. Cost of Living Adjustments 

(COLA) is budgeted at 2.9%.  

Interfund Transfers 
Interfund Transfers represent the movement of 

monies between funds within the City. This is normally 

done to move money from the operating funds into 

other funds where they will be saved for future 

expenditures or used to complete capital projects.  

This budget reflects both moving to save as well as 

moving funds to reimburse for capital projects.  

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out Difference

General
215,000$    (215,000)$     

Streets
250,000$     175,000$    75,000$     

Community 

Development 175,000$     30,000$    145,000$    

Water & Sewer 

Reserve 1,000,000$ -$    1,000,000$     

Equipment Reserve
350,000$     250,000$    100,000$    

CDD Operating 

Reserve 30,000$    30,000$     

Industrial / Economic 

Development 40,000$    40,000$     

SDC
500,000$    500,000$    

Water
1,150,000$    (1,150,000)$    

Sewer
525,000$    (525,000)$     

Totals 2,345,000$ 2,345,000$    -$    

Position FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

City Manager 1.00           1.00           1.00           

Assistant City Manager / 

Finance Director
1.00           1.00           1.00           

Public Works Director 1.00           1.00           1.00           

City Engineer 1.00           1.00           

Community 

Development Director
1.00           1.00           1.00           

Associate Planner 1.00           1.00           1.00           

Executive Assistant 1.00           

City Recorder 1.00           1.00           

Administrative 

Assistant
1.00           1.00           1.00           

Accounting Clerk 1.00           -             -             

Utility Billing Clerk 1.00           1.00           

Public Works 

Maintenance Staff
4.00           5.00           5.00           

Total 11.00         14.00         15.00         

FTE

44



Key Projects by Fund 

45



KEY PROJECTS BY FUND 
As the Water and Wastewater Expansion project 

winds down, the rest of the City is still geared up 

for several future projects. Last year at this time 

the Water & Wastewater project was halted due 

to inadvertent discoveries located in the 

Glenwood Subdivision. This stall to the project 

lasted for a few months which extended the 

project timeline. However, the stall also provided 

time for staff to fully vet the addition of three 

private streets to the project. Without this stall, 

there is the potential that approximately 20 

homes may not have been connected. As of April 

2025, the remaining portions of the projects 

include the Industrial Lift Station and any 

warranty work discovered over the next 12 

months. Staff is pleased to announce that almost 

a decade after its inception the project has 

reached substantial completion.  

As has been mentioned in previous budget 

documents, staffing had been an issue for the 

City since the onset of COVID. Staff is happy to note that only one position has turned over in the last 12 

months. Further, the city still has open recruitments for a Public Works Director and City Engineer. Last fall, the 

city hired the new position of Utility Billing Clerk. The addition has increased redundancy, coverage of the 

lobby and help with the foot traffic. This position also relieved the City Recorder from the lobby duties and as a 

result that position has been able to take on new responsibilities. This Fiscal Year the City is only proposing one 

added position which will be an Executive Assistant for the City Manager. This position will be split amongst 

the General, Streets, Community Development, Water and Sewer Funds. In addition to a small portion being 

absorbed by the Urban Renewal District.  

Other major funding projects that are wrapping up before the FY25 year end are both ARPA projects and the 

completion of the Comprehensive Plan Update. The first ARPA funding was used for enhanced police forces in 

the City and the creation of the City’s own Finance Department. This funding has been exhausted, however, 

the City’s relationship with Deschutes County Sheriff will continue, as well as the continuation of employment 

of our in-house Financial Director. The second ARPA project was the Eastside Sidewalk Design. The project will 

be shelf ready for funding to make the Eastside Sidewalks on Highway 97 match the Westside. The 

Comprehensive Plan update, implemented in late 2023, should be completed by June. This update evaluated 

how citizens envisioned the City looking in 20 years. This project was headed by the City’s Community 

Development Department, who have spent numerous hours gathering information through public outreach 

over the last 2 years to accomplish this.  

46



General & Cemetery Funds 

The City’s safety committee has been underway for a 

little over a year now. Some of the projects they have 

completed have included purchasing life jackets for 

emergency use at the wastewater treatment plant, 

lighting for City Hall, the Booster Station and 

Wastewater Treatment Plant, and First Aid Kits for all 

the vehicles. This year the Safety Committee is 

requesting AED’s for all buildings, Exit Light 

replacements, and a safer boat for travel in the City’s 

Lagoons for repairs and maintenance.  

The General Fund has projects budgeted including 

outside painting, a potential fire suppression system, and paving. The City Hall building has not been painted 

since the inception of its use in 2011. The need for a fire suppression system is being evaluated by our local fire 

chief. Paving for City Hall also hasn’t been reassessed since the initial construction of this building. Last year 

the City received an IT system upgrade and a new Audio and Visual System in our Council Chambers. With the 

interior upgrades completed, staff thought it appropriate to begin working on the outside maintenance of the 

building.  

As the City evolves, and more staff are brought on the need for space is becoming more apparent. The General 

Fund has begun reserving funds for this expansion which will likely need to occur in the next 3-5 years. You can 

see where this amount is earmarked on pg. 49, account 10-950-7000. 

There are no projects outlined for the Cemetery Fund. The City Manager and other staff are hoping to better 

open communications with the local mortuary who helps manage the Cemetery for the City. The Cemetery 

fund is always very limited as there are not a lot of plot sales. Plot sales are the only source of revenue for that 

fund.  

47



Streets Fund 

As discussed earlier, the City has wrapped up it’s Eastside Sidewalk Design project this year. We are 

considering, potentially, coupling this project with wastewater mainline expansion on highway 97. There is no 

definitive decision on this yet, however, now that we have the sidewalk design in hand, staff is willing to 

consider this as an option. Beginning in April 2025 the City started maintenance of dirt roads using it’s own 

staff. This is a big step for the City as this has historically been contracted out. Last year, the Streets fund 

reserved $250,000 for equipment for this purpose. This year the City intends to purchase the equipment and 

begin this maintenance program.  

Lastly, staff is still considering methods of funding for the Streets Fund. Some of those considerations are a fee 

on utility bills, a gas tax, a bond, and lastly an Urban Renewal District. It is important to note that none of these 

methods have been decided and any decisions for this type of funding would be discussed and vetted by the 

City Council through a public meeting process.  

Tourism Fund 

There are no new projects this year in the Tourism Fund. Last year 

the Tourism Fund, in conjunction with the Urban Renewal Agency, 

began work on an archway into the City of La Pine. That project is 

about 30% completed as of April 2025. Also budgeted last year was 

beautification and signage at the Transit Center on 4th Street. As 

many of you are aware the initial funding for this project was not 

enough to cover the design. As a result, many elements were 

removed, including landscaping and signage. The City intends to 

work on this element of the project during the summer and fall of 

2025.  

48



Community Development Fund 

The city’s Community Development 

Department has been continually working on 

Long Range Projects. As of April 2025 the 

department is wrapping up the 

Comprehensive Plan update, which should 

be fully completed by late June or early July. 

Next, the department will be working on two 

projects. First, a code amendment to be put 

together post Comp Plan Amendment update. Secondly, the department will be working on a Transportation 

System Plan update. This update will be funded by a grant provided by ODOT (Oregon Department of 

Transportation). Other projects of significance in the coming fiscal year include work with Deschutes County on 

the Newberry Master Plan update, a rate study, and the establishment of a reserve fund for future saving.  

SDC (System Development Charges) Fund 

The city is in need of new Capital Improvement Plans for 

Streets, Water and Sewer. These costs for these plans 

were budgeted in FY25, however, none of the funds 

were expended. As a result, the City will be re-budgeting 

those dollars for FY26. Our hope is to have some 

headway on these projects during the fall of 2025. The 

other expenditure coming from the SDC Fund this year is 

the continuation of work on the Newberry Lift Station. 

This project has been bid and will like commence in the 

late spring / early summer 2025.  

Industrial / Economic Development Fund 

The major project for the City’s Industrial / Economic Development Fund this year will be the continuation of 

the city’s spec building. During FY24 the City was awarded $1.5M from the State of Oregon to begin working 

on this project. Since then the project has been 

bid, and a contractor solidified.  Construction on 

this project should begin by summer 2025. As 

always, this fund annually puts on a very successful 

luncheon at the Sunriver Resort. The current 

Economic Development Manager works hard to 

make this a successful event annually. The event 

has been held for the last 5 years and yields a 

sizeable profit each year. Data for the last 4 

luncheons shown.    $-

 $1,000.00

 $2,000.00

 $3,000.00

 $4,000.00

 $5,000.00

 $6,000.00

 $7,000.00

 $8,000.00

2022 2023 2024 2025

SLED Luncheon Revenue (Annually)

49



Water Fund 

Staff is excited to be wrapping up the Water and 

Wastewater Expansion. This over $40M project 

($18M slated for water) has been underway since 

fall 2022. Substantial completion for the water 

portion was completed in April 2025. As we 

segway into a steadier pace in this fund the City is 

not anticipating any large projects. This fund has 

budgeted for some outside painting for the 

Booster Station, some potential water right 

purchases, a new vactor truck (only partially 

funded through water), and the potential for a 

new water fill station for hydrant water. Last year this fund completed the WMCP (Water Management and 

Conservation Plan) which should be submitted and finalized by June 2025. This plan is required by the Oregon 

Water Resources Department every 5 years. Other projects for this fund include an ordinance and code review, 

the Capital Improvement Plan update (budgeted from the SDC fund), and a potential rate study if the CIP is 

completed prior to the Fiscal Year End.  

Sewer Fund 

Again, sentiments should be given to the completion of the City’s 

Water and Wastewater expansion. Of the over $40M project, $22M 

was expended for sewer. Substantial completion for all parts of this 

project outside of the Industrial Lift station is slated for June 2025. 

As this department moves into a slower pace we are not taking on 

any large projects. This fund has budgeted the purchase of a vactor 

truck (only partially funded through sewer). Other projects for this 

fund include an ordinance and code review, the Capital 

Improvement Plan update (budgeted from the SDC fund), and a 

potential rate study if the CIP is completed prior to the Fiscal Year End. 

50



Overview of Changes by Fund 

51



OVERVIEW AND CHANGES BY FUND 

General Fund 

The only substantial change to revenue in the General Fund is to Shared Revenues. This is because some 

substantial grant amounts were recorded in this line item for FY22 and FY23. These amounts skewed the 

correct amounts received to that line item. Staff continues to monitor it annually, and have seen this trend 

smooth out since. Changes to expenditures include an increase in personnel services. This is because staff has 

decided to reallocate where personnel services are spent. This change results in higher personnel costs in the 

General Fund, but lower costs in the Streets, Community Development, Water and Sewer Funds. Materials and 

Services, Capital Outlay, Debt Service, Transfers Out, Contingency and Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance all 

remain consistent to last year.  

Cemetery Fund 

There are no substantial changes to the Cemetery Fund. 

Streets Fund 

This year there is a large transfer into the fund from the Equipment Reserve Fund. This is for the intended 

purchase of a grader, water truck and roller. These pieces of equipment will allow the City to conduct its own 

maintenance in the Cagle subdivision, and other unimproved City owned streets, going forward. Personnel 

Service costs are decreased this year due to the reallocation of staff expenses discussed above. Materials and 

Services, Capital Outlay, Debt Service, Transfers Out, Contingency and Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance all 

remain consistent to last year.  

52



Tourism Fund 

There are no substantial changes to the Tourism Fund. 

Community Development Fund 

This year the transfer into this fund from the 

General Fund has increased. This is due to the 

influx of long-range work being conducted by this 

department. Some of these projects, discussed in 

the Key Projects by Fund section include 

Newberry Master Plan collaboration, the 

Transportation System Plan (TSP) update and a 

rate study. Personnel Service costs are down due 

to the reallocation discussed in the General Fund 

section. Material & Services costs are up due to 

an increase in contracted services related to any 

of the long-range projects identified for this fiscal year. An increase to Engineering Services is also anticipated 

as the City continues to recruit for a Public Works Director and City Engineer. Capital Outlay, Debt Service, 

Transfers Out, Contingency and Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance all remain consistent to last year. 

Water & Sewer, Equipment and Debt Reserve Funds 

The water and sewer funds will be transferring a total of $1M ($500,000 each) to the Reserve Fund this year. 

This is to help restore reserves after much of it was spent during the City’s Water & Wastewater Expansion. 

The Debt Reserve fund is fully funded with required USDA reserves. This process was completed during the 

FY25 budget, therefore, no new transfers were made. Lastly, the Equipment Reserve fund will receive $350,000 

of transfers in from the Water, Sewer and Streets Funds (combined) and $250,000 transferred out to the 

Streets Fund.  

Community Development Operating Reserve Fund 

This is a new fund created to begin saving funds in case of a recession or other unforeseen economic 

emergency.  

53



Industrial / Economic Development Fund 

This year the annual transfer to this fund from the General Fund 

has been restored. The transfer represents the General Fund 

matching the contributions received annually from Deschutes 

County. Materials and Services have been reduced from last year 

due to a decrease to Contracted Services. These contractor costs 

are now accounted for in Capital Expenditures related to the 

construction of the spec building. The City did not spend as much 

as anticipated for this construction, so the amount has been 

budgeted again this year. Contingency and Unappropriated Ending 

Fund Balance remain consistent to last year. 

SDC Fund 

The SDC fund continues to rebuild after a large expenditure related to the Water and Wastewater Expansion. 

The water fund is transferring in $500,000 for the purpose of rebuilding. Capital Expenditures include the 

expansion of the Newberry Lift Station and Capital Improvement Plans (CIP’s) for Water, Sewer and Streets. 

These amounts are consistent with last year because those projects were not initiated.  

Water Fund 

The Water Fund is projecting a 3% increase. This is the last in a set of increases recommended by FCS group 

over a decade ago. Personnel Services remains consistent, however, slightly lower than last year due to the 

reallocation of staff discussed earlier in this document. Materials and Services remain consistent with a slight 

increase due to inflationary expectations. As the large projects conclude staff is closely monitoring the Capital 

Outlay expenditures for settling. Staff is also monitoring the Debt Service category as this is the first year that 

the City’s substantial Debt Service payments are due for the expansion project. Transfers Out, Contingency and 

Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance all remain consistent to last year. 

Sewer Fund 

The Sewer Fund is projecting an 18% rate increase. This is the second to last in a set of increases 

recommended by FCS group over a decade ago. Personnel Services remains consistent, however, slightly lower 

than last year due to the reallocation of staff discussed earlier in this document. Materials and Services remain 

consistent with a slight increase due to inflationary 

expectations. As with the Water Fund, as the large projects 

conclude, staff is closely monitoring the Capital Outlay 

expenditures for settling. Staff is also monitoring the Debt 

Service category as this is the first year that the City’s 

substantial Debt Service payments are due for the 
expansion project. Contingency and Unappropriated 

Ending Fund Balance have increased. This is due largely to 

the fact that last year the City transferred substantial debt 

service reserves out of this fund as required by the USDA.  

54



Budget Worksheets by Fund 

55



General Fund 

56



57



58



59



Cemetery Fund 

60



61



Streets Fund 

62



63



64



Tourism Fund 

65



66



Community Development Fund 

67



68



69



Water and Sewer Reserve Fund 

70



71



Equipment Reserve Fund 

72



73



Debt Reserve Fund 

74



75



Community Development Operating Reserve Fund 

76



77



Industrial / Economic Development Fund 

78



79



80



SDC (System Development Charges) Fund 

81



82



Water Fund 

83



84



85



86



Sewer Fund 

87



88



89



90



GLOSSARY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE TERMS 
Accrual basis. Method of accounting recognizing transactions when they occur without regard toward cash flow timing [ORS 

294.311(1)].  

Activity. That portion of the work of an organizational unit relating to a specific function or class of functions, a project or program, a 

subproject or subprogram, or any convenient division of these [ORS 294.311 (2)].  

Adopted budget. Financial plan that is the basis for appropriations. Adopted by the governing body [ORS 294.456]. 

Ad valorem tax. A property tax computed as a percentage of the value of taxable property. See “Assessed Value.” 

Appropriation. Authorization for spending a specific amount of money for a specific purpose during a fiscal year. It is based on the 

adopted budget, including supplemental budgets, if any. It is presented in a resolution or ordinance adopted by the governing body 

[ORS 294.311(3)].  

Approved budget. The budget that has been approved by the budget committee. The data from the approved budget is published in 

the Financial Summary before the budget hearing [ORS 294.428].  

Assessed value. The value set on real and personal property as a basis for imposing taxes. It is the lesser of the property’s maximum 

assessed value or real market value. The growth is limited to 3% unless an exception applies (e.g., new or enlarged structure).  

Assessment date. The date on which the real market value of property is set—January 1. Audit. The annual review and appraisal of a 

municipal corporation’s accounts and fiscal affairs conducted by an accountant under contract or the Secretary of State [ORS 

297.425].  

Audit report. A report in a form prescribed by the Secretary of State made by an auditor expressing an opinion about the propriety 

of a local government’s financial statements, and compliance with requirements, orders and regulations.  

Bequest. A gift by will of personal property; a legacy. Biennial budget. A budget for a 24-month period. 

Billing rate. A district’s tax rate used to compute ad valorem taxes for each property. The billing rate is expressed in dollars per 

$1,000 of assessed property value.  

Budget. Written document showing the local government’s comprehensive financial plan for one fiscal year or biennium. It must 

include a balanced statement of actual revenues and expenditures during each of the last two years, and estimated revenues and 

expenditures for the current and upcoming year [ORS 294.311(5)].  

Budget committee. Fiscal planning board of a local government, consisting of the governing body plus an equal number of 

registered voters appointed from the district [ORS 294.414]. Proposed Budget Fiscal Budget message. Written explanation of a local 

government’s budget and financial policies, including any changes from the prior fiscal year. It is prepared and presented under the 

direction of the executive officer or chairperson of the governing body [ORS 294.403].  

Budget officer. Person appointed by the governing body to assemble budget material and information and to physically prepare the 

proposed budget [ORS 294.331].  

Budget period. For local governments on a biennial budget, the 24-month period beginning July 1 and ending June 30 of the second 

following calendar year. See also “Fiscal year.”  

Budget transfers. Amounts moved from one fund to finance activities in another fund. They are shown as expenditures in the 

originating fund and revenues in the receiving fund.  

CDP: Community Development Project 

Capital outlay. Items which generally have a useful life of one or more years, such as machinery, land, furniture, equipment, or 

buildings.  

Capital projects fund. A fund used to account for resources, such as bond sale proceeds, and expenditures to be used for major 

91



capital item purchase or construction [OAR 150-294.352(1)]. 

Cash basis. System of accounting under which revenues are accounted for only when received in cash, and expenditures are 

accounted for only when paid [ORS 294.311(9)].  

Category of limitation. The three categories of taxes on property for the purpose of the constitutional limits - education, general 

government, excluded from limitation [ORS 310.150]. 

Compression. A reduction in taxes required by Measure 5 (1990) property tax limits. Compression is computed on a property-by-

property basis, and is first applied towards local option tax levies, then permanent rate levies.  

Consolidated billing tax rate. The consolidated billing tax rate is the combined total of the billing rates for all taxing districts in a 

limitation category in the code area but does not include the billing rate for any urban renewal special levies or non-ad valorem 

taxes, fees, or other charges.  

Constitutional limits. The maximum amount of tax on property that can be collected from an individual property for education and 

for other government activities (Art. XI, sect. 11b, Or Const.).  

Contingency. An amount appropriated in anticipation that some operating expenditures will become necessary which cannot be 

foreseen and planned in the budget. A general operating fund may contain one line for operating contingency [ORS 294.388].  

Debt service fund. A fund established to account for payment of general long-term debt principal and interest [OAR 150-

294.352(1)].  

Devise. A gift by will of the donor of real property.  

District. See “Local government.”  A local government entity that imposes property taxes (e.g. county, city, K-12 school district). 

Division of tax. Division of tax refers to the process of, and revenue from, apportioning tax to urban renewal agencies based on the 

relationship of the excess to frozen value, a.k.a. tax increment revenue.  

Double majority. A term that refers to an election where at least 50 percent of the registered voters eligible to vote in the election 

cast a ballot and more than 50 percent voting approve the question. (Any March or September Election)  

Education category. The limitation category for taxes that will be used to support the public school system and that are not used to 

pay exempt bonded indebtedness [ORS 310.150(1)(b)]  

Encumbrance. An obligation chargeable to an appropriation and for which part of the appropriation is reserved [ORS 294.311(13)]. 

Enterprise fund. A fund established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 

enterprises. They are usually self- supporting. Examples of enterprise funds are those for water, gas, and electric utilities, swimming 

pools, airports, parking garages, transit systems, and ports [OAR 150-294.352(1)].  

Excluded from limitation category. The category for taxes used to pay principal and interest on exempt bonded indebtedness [ORS 

310.150(1)(a)].  

Exempt bonded indebtedness. 1) Bonded indebtedness authorized by a specific provision of the Oregon Constitution, or 2) bonded 

indebtedness issued as a general obligation on or before November 6, 1990, incurred for capital construction or capital 

improvements, or 3) bonded indebtedness issued as a general obligation after November 6, 1990, incurred for capital construction 

or capital improvements with the approval of the electors of the local government. Bonded indebtedness issued to refund or 

refinance any bonded indebtedness described above is also included [ORS 310.140(7)(b)]. 

Existing plan. An existing urban renewal plan is defined as a plan that existed in December 1996, and, 1) chose an option and, 2) 

established a maximum amount of indebtedness by July 1998 and has not been amended to increase the land area or maximum 

indebtedness [ORS 457.435(4)(a)].  

Expenditures. Total amount incurred if accounts are kept on an accrual basis; total amount paid if accounts are kept on a cash basis. 

Does not include amounts budgeted for interfund transfers, contingency, reserved for future expenditure or unappropriated ending 
92



fund balance. [ORS 294.311(16)]. 

Fiscal year. A 12 month period to which the annual operating budget applies. The fiscal year is July 1 through June 30 for local 

governments [ORS 294.311(17)].  

 Fund. A fiscal and accounting entity with self-balancing accounts to record cash and other financial resources, related liabilities, 

balances and changes, all segregated for specific, regulated activities and objectives.  

Fund balance. The excess of the assets of a fund over its liabilities and reserves. [ORS 294.311(18)]. Fund type. One of nine fund 

types: General, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, special assessment, enterprise, internal service, trust and agency, and 

reserve [OAR 150-294.352(1)].  

General fund. A fund used to account for most fiscal activities except for those activities required to be accounted for in another 

fund [OAR 150-294.352(1)].  

General government category. The limitation category for taxes used to support general government operations that are not for the 

purposes of paying exempt bonded indebtedness [ORS 310.150(1)(c)].  

Governing body. County court or board of commissioners, city council, school board, board of trustees, board of directors, or other 

managing board of a local government unit [ORS 294.311(20)]  

Grant. A donation or contribution in cash by one governmental unit to another unit which may be made to support a specified 

purpose or function, or general purpose [ORS 294.311(21)].  

Interfund loan. Loan made from one fund to another and authorized by resolution or ordinance [ORS 294.468]. 

Interfund Transfer. Transfer from an existing appropriation category in one fund to another existing appropriation category in 

another fund. [ORS 294.463].  

Intrafund Transfer. Transfer from one existing appropriation category to another within the same fund. [ORS 294.463]. 

Internal service fund. A fund used to account for fiscal activities when goods or services are provided by one organizational unit to 

another on a cost-reimbursement basis [ORS 294.311(23) and 294.343].  

Levy. Amount of ad valorem tax certified by a local government for the support of governmental activities. 

Liability. Debt or other legal obligation arising from transactions in the past which must be liquidated, renewed, or refunded at a 

future date; does not include encumbrances [ORS 294.311(24)].  

Local government. Any city, county, port, school district, community college, public or quasi-public corporation (including a 

municipal utility or dock commission) operated by a separate board or commission; a municipal corporation or municipality [ORS 

294.311(26)].  

Local option tax. Taxing authority approved by voters that is in addition to the taxes generated by the permanent tax rate. Local 

option taxes can be for general operations, a specific purpose or capital projects. They are limited to five years unless they are for a 

capital project, then they are limited to the useful life of the project or 10 years, whichever is less.  

Materials and Services. Expenses for operating costs and supplies and contracted services, such as utilities, rent, liability insurance, 

repair parts, fuel, accountant’s fees, etc.  

Maximum assessed value (MAV). The maximum taxable value limitation placed on real or personal property by the Article XI, 

section 11 of the Constitution. It can increase a maximum of 3 percent each year. The 3 percent limit may be exceeded if there are 

qualifying improvements made to the property, such as a major addition or new construction.  

Maximum authority. The limitation on the amount of revenue that can be raised each year for an existing urban renewal plan area 

[ORS 457.435(3)(a)]. Plans that are not existing plans do not have a maximum authority amount. This amount is adjusted each year 

based on the growth of excess value in the plan area. 

Maximum indebtedness. The amount of the principal of the indebtedness necessary to complete an urban renewal plan. This does 

not include indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing indebtedness [ORS 457.190(3)(a)]. It is specified in dollars and 
93



cents and based on good faith estimates of the scope and costs of the anticipated project or projects. All existing plans are required 

to have an ordinance which establishes a maximum indebtedness.  

Measure 5. A constitutional tax rate limitation (Article XI, Section 11b) passed by the voters in 1990 which restricts the amount an 

individual property can be taxed. Measure 5 limits school taxes to $5 per $1,000 of ‘real market value’. All other general government 

taxes are limited to $10 per $1,000 of ‘real market value’.  

Measure 50. Initially this measure was passed as Measure 47 in 1996 and was found to be unworkable, so was rewritten and 

submitted to the voters as Measure 50 in 1997 and passed. M50 reduced every property’s 1995-96 assessed value by 10%, and also 

limited the amount of annual growth of the assessed value to 3 %. M50 also established permanent rate limitations for each taxing 

district in the state based on the current year tax in 1997, and then reduced 13% for most districts. If a district did not have a tax levy 

in 1997 and had never levied a tax, they could later request a permanent rate limit by going to the voters through a ballot measure.  

Municipal corporation. See “Local government.” 

Municipality. See “Local government.”  

Net working capital. The sum of the cash balance, accounts receivable expected to be realized during the ensuing year, inventories, 

supplies, prepaid expenses less current liabilities and, if encumbrance method of accounting is used, reserve for encumbrances [ORS 

294.311(27)].  

Object classification. A grouping of expenditures, such as personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, debt services, 

and other types of requirements [ORS 294.311(29)]. 

Operating rate. The rate determined by dividing the local government’s tax amount by the estimated assessed value in district. This 

rate is calculated by the assessor when a local government imposes its operating tax as an amount, rather than a tax rate.  

Ordinance. A formal enactment by the governing board of a municipality. 

Organizational unit. Any administrative subdivision of the local government, especially one charged with carrying on one or more 

specific functions such as a department, office or division. [ORS 294.311(31)].  

Personnel Services. Expenses related to the compensation of salaried employees, such as health and accident insurance premiums, 

Social Security and retirement contributions, civil service assessments.  

Permanent rate limit. The maximum rate of ad valorem property taxes that a local government can impose. Taxes generated from 

the permanent rate limit can be used for any purpose. No action of the local government or its voters can increase or decrease a 

permanent rate limit. A district can levy any rate or amount up to their permanent rate authority each year. Prior years’ tax levies. 

Taxes levied for fiscal years preceding the current one.  

Program. A group of related activities to accomplish a major service or function for which the local government is responsible [ORS 

294.311(33)].  

Property taxes. An ad valorem tax, another other “tax on property”, or fees, charges and assessments that are specifically 

authorized by statute to be certified to the county assessor by a local government unit. 

Proposed budget. Financial and operating plan prepared by the budget officer. It is submitted to the public and the budget 

committee for review.  

Publication. Public notice given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation within the boundaries of the local government; 

mailing through the U.S. Postal Service by first class mail to each street address, PO Box and Rural Route within the boundaries of 

the local government; or hand delivery to each street address, PO Box and Rural Route address within the boundaries of the local 

government.  

Real Market Value (RMV). The amount in cash which could reasonably be expected by an informed seller from an informed buyer in 

an arm’s-length transaction as of the assessment date (Jan 1). [ORS 308.205].  

Reserve for Future Expenditure. An amount budgeted, but not appropriated, that is not anticipated to be spent in the fiscal year, 

94



but rather carried forward into future fiscal years. The correct way to “save” money under Local Budget Law. 

Reserve fund. Established to accumulate money from year to year for a specific purpose, such as purchase of new equipment [ORS 

294.346; 280.050].  

Resolution. A formal order of a governing body; lower legal status than an ordinance. Resource. Estimated beginning funds on hand 

plus anticipated receipts [ORS 294.361].  

Special levy. A special levy is an ad valorem tax imposed for an existing urban renewal plan. It is not a result of a division of tax but 

rather imposed directly for the plan.  

Special revenue fund. A fund used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure 

for specific purposes [OAR 150-294.352(1)].  

Special payment. A budget expenditure category for distributions, pass-through payments, grants made to other organizations and 

other one-time or unusual expenditures where goods or services are not received in return, and that do not fall into the other 

categories of personal services, materials and services, capital outlay, etc.  

Supplemental budget. A revised financial plan prepared to meet unexpected needs or to spend revenues not anticipated when the 

regular budget was adopted. It cannot be used to authorize additional taxes. [ORS 294.471].  

Tax increment financing. A financial mechanism for urban renewal plans which captures the tax from the growth in property value 

within a designated geographical area. AKA urban renewal division of tax.  

Tax on property. Any tax, fee, charge or assessment imposed by any government unit upon property or upon a property owner as a 

direct consequence of ownership of that property [ORS 310.140(18)].  

Tax rate. The amount of tax stated in terms of a unit of tax for each $1,000 of assessed value of taxable property. 

Tax roll. The official list showing the amount of taxes imposed against each taxable property.  

Tax year. The fiscal year from July 1 through June 30.  

Trust fund. A fund used to account for fiscal activities of assets held in trust by a local government.  

Unappropriated ending fund balance. Amount set aside in the budget to be used as a cash carryover to the next year’s budget. It 

provides the local government with operating cash until tax money is received from the county treasurer in November. This amount 

cannot be transferred by resolution or used through a supplemental budget, unless necessitated by a qualifying emergency [ORS 

294.398]. 

95



 July 1, 2025, for the following purposes:

Administration 1,522,194$   Cemetery Program 37,000$   

Debt Service ………… 43,000 Contingency…………..…… 15,000 

Transfers Out………… 215,000 Total……….... 52,000$   

Contingency…………..…… 400,000 

Total……….... 2,180,194$   Tourism Fund (22)

Tourism Program 272,800$   

Transfers Out………… - 

Streets Program 1,472,904$   Contingency…………..…… 150,000 

Transfers Out………… 175,000 Total……….... 422,800$   

Contingency…………..…… 200,000 

Total……….... 1,847,904$   Community Development Fund (23)

Community Develeopment Program 603,949$   

Water Fund (50) Transfers Out………… 30,000 

Water Utility Services Program 1,726,225$   Contingency…. 75,000$   

Debt Service ………… 475,000 Total……….... 708,949$   

Transfers Out………… 1,150,000          

Contingency…………..…… 350,000 SDC Fund (41)

Total……….... 3,701,225$   SDC Program 3,000,000$   

Transfers Out……

Sewer Fund (52) Total……….... 3,000,000$   

Sewer Utility Services Program 4,374,356$   

Debt Service ………… 650,000 

Transfers Out………… 525,000 Economic Development Program 1,929,500$   

Contingency…………..…… 750,000 Transfers Out………… - 

Total……….... 6,299,356$   Contingency…………..…… 50,000 

Total……….... 1,979,500$   

Equipment Reserve (27)

Transfers Out………… 250,000 Reserve Fund (26)

Total……….... 250,000$   Transfers Out…………

Total……….... -$   

Debt Reserve (31)

Transfers Out………… CDD Reserve Fund (33)

Total……….... -$   Transfers Out…………

Total……….... -$   

Total APPROPRIATIONS, All Funds . . . . 20,441,928$   

Total Unappropriated and Reserve Amounts, All Funds . . . . 10,651,265

TOTAL ADOPTED BUDGET . . . . 31,093,193$   

Economic Development Fund (40)

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of La Pine, Oregon, hereby adopts the budget for fiscal year 2025-26 in the total 

amount of  $31,093,193. * This budget is now on file at La Pine City Hall in La Pine, Oregon.

(1) In the amount of $________ OR at the rate of $1.98 per $1,000 of assess value for permantent rate tax;

(2) In the amount of $________ OR at the rate of $_______ per $1,000 of assess value for local option tax; and

RESOLUTION IMPOSING THE TAX

BE IT RESOLVED that ad valorem property taxes are hereby imposed for tax year 2025-26 upon the assessed value of all taxable 

property.

RESOLUTION  No. 2025-06

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET

Cemetery Fund (20)

Streets Fund (21)

RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS

BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts shown below are hereby appropriated for the fiscal year beginning 

General Fund (10)

1
96



                 X____________________________________________

The above resolution statements were approved and declared adopted on June 11, 2025.

RESOLUTION CATEGORIZING THE TAX

Permanent Rate Tax …............ $_______ or $1.98 / $1,000 

Local Option Tax Rate….......... $_______ or $___________ / $1,000 

BE IT RESOLVED that the taxes imposed are hereby categorized for the purposes of Article XI section 11b as:

General Government Limitiation

(3) In the amount of $________ for debt service general obligation bonds; 

2
97



 

 

 
CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 11, 2025 
 

TO: City Council 
 

FROM: Brent Bybee, Community Development Director  
 

SUBJECT: La Pine Community Identity Discussion 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[ ] Formal Motion  [ X ] Other/Direction:  
  
 

Councilmembers: 
 
As part of the City of La Pine’s ongoing efforts to implement our 2023 Visioning priorities and update our 
Comprehensive Plan, staff is initiating a focused public engagement project aimed at defining a clear and 
authentic identity for La Pine. 
 
This project, seeks to explore and articulate what makes La Pine unique — not only as a place but as a 
community with shared values, character, and aspirations. 
 
Before launching into broader community outreach, we are asking for your early input to help shape the 
goals, tone, and intended outcomes of this effort. 
 
Community identity work only succeeds when it reflects both the lived experience of residents and the 
aspirations of civic leadership. Your input will help ensure the project: 
 

• Aligns with Council’s broader strategic direction. 
• Addresses existing misconceptions and missed opportunities. 
• Focuses on outcomes that have practical, long-term value for the city (e.g., economic 

development, tourism, branding, planning, and signage). 
 
The discussion questions attached are intended to be open-ended and thought-provoking. They are not 
a test — rather, they’re designed to surface key ideas, values, and insights from your perspective as 
elected representatives of La Pine. 

98



 
 
Action: 
 
No action is needed, staff will be asking each question attached to the council, and documenting 
answers.   
 
 
Next Steps: 
 
 Following these initial discussions with the City Council and Planning Commission: 
 

• Staff will finalize a public engagement plan. 
• Engagement activities will begin in late June. 
• A draft identity narrative and themes will be developed based on public and leadership input, 

with further opportunities for review and refinement by Council. 
 

99



         CITY OF LA PINE 

 

 
 

La Pine Community Identity Discussion 
 
Vision & Purpose 

• “In your view, why does La Pine need a defined identity at this point in time?” 
• “What would success look like at the end of this project?” 
• “How do you want La Pine to be described in 10 years — by locals and outsiders?” 

 
Community Voice 

• “What groups or perspectives in the community do we need to hear from most?” 
• “What should we be careful not to overlook when shaping a community identity?” 
• “How can we ensure this process feels inclusive, not just symbolic?” 

 
Civic Pride & External Messaging 

• “How do you think residents currently perceive La Pine?” 
• “How do you want tourists, businesses, or new residents to experience La Pine?” 
• “Are there misconceptions about La Pine you’d like to see challenged through this 

process?” 
 
Use & Application 

• “Where do you see the new identity being used most effectively? (e.g., signage, tourism, 
branding, planning documents?)” 

• “How should this project influence our other strategic or policy efforts, if at all?” 
 
3-Word Prompt 

• “If you had to describe La Pine in three words, what would they be?” 
 
 

100



 

 

 
CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 11, 2025 
 

TO: City Council 
 

FROM: Brent Bybee, Community Development Director  
 

SUBJECT: Newberry Neighborhood/Cagle Subdivision Master Plan Discussion 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[ ] Formal Motion  [X] Other/Direction:  
  
 

Newberry Neighborhood 
 
At the February 26, 2025, joint meeting between the Board of County Commissioners and La Pine City 
Council, Deschutes County presented information on Neighborhoods 3 and 4 within the Newberry 
Neighborhood Planning Area. County representatives emphasized the importance of launching a joint 
master planning effort between the County and the City following completion of the La Pine 2045 
Comprehensive Plan Update. They stressed the need for timing and coordination. 
 
While most of the discussion focused on Neighborhoods 3 and 4, the County also expressed interest in 
gauging the City’s perspective on quadrants 2a and 2d of Neighborhood 2. 
 
City staff highlighted that this area could serve as a critical connection between the north and south ends 
of La Pine, offering an opportunity for innovative, collaborative planning. Staff noted that spring 2025 
would be the ideal time to launch a master planning process. 
 
As the City nears adoption of the updated comprehensive plan, staff reached out to Deschutes County 
Community Development to revisit the planning discussion, with hopes of conducting public engagement 
during the 2025 summer season. 
 
County Response 
 
Community Development Director Peter Gutowsky, along with County Administrator Nick Lelack and 
Property Manager Kristie Bollinger, communicated that the County is not currently ready to initiate the 

101



master planning process. Two key factors were cited: 
 

• Pending Land Sales: Quadrants 2a and 2d are currently listed for sale. The County proposes a 6–12 
month wait to assess market interest and allow time for completion of the sewer lift station. 
 

• Insufficient Funding: Deschutes County’s Fund 297 lacks adequate resources to support a master 
plan that would evaluate development potential, infrastructure needs, and zoning for mixed-use, 
housing, and open space in Neighborhoods 3 and 4. 

 
Although the County is not ready to proceed, they expressed support for the City leading the effort, citing 
possible funding sources such as TGM grants and programs from the Department of Land Conservation 
and Development (DLCD). 
 
 
Cagle Subdivision 
 
The Cagle Subdivision, encompassing approximately 403 acres of residential land in north La Pine, was 
approved in the 1960s—prior to Oregon's statewide land use regulations. The subdivision features 1-acre 
lots and has historically faced challenges due to: 

 
• Groundwater contamination from subsurface septic systems. 

 
• Deed restrictions limiting further division until municipal sewer and water services became 

available. 
 
The City recently extended sewer and water infrastructure into the subdivision, removing the previous 
restrictions. However, significant infrastructure deficits remain, including unpaved roads and lack of 
sidewalks. 
 
The Planning Department is observing a notable increase in land division applications from property 
owners interested in further development. 
 
Given these emerging pressures, staff recommends considering a master planning process for the entire 
subdivision. This would require a coordinated effort between the City, landowners, and a third-party 
consultant, supported by a robust public engagement strategy. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation & Discussion 
 
Staff seeks City Council’s direction on how to prioritize the two planning efforts.  
 
The DLCD Housing Planning Assistance Grant, with applications due August 4, 2025, could support either 
the Newberry or Cagle project. However, given the scale of each, staff recommends applying for only one 
project under this program. Awarded projects typically begin early in 2026. It is also worth noting that a 
draft policy in the proposed 2045 Comprehensive Plan supports collaborative planning for Newberry: 
 

Goal 14: Urbanization 
Policy 2.7: Support a public engagement plan and master planning effort, at the initiation of the 
County, for the undeveloped lands within the Newberry Neighborhood Planning Area Overlay 
Zone. 

102



 
Based on this policy, staff recommends the City wait for the County to co-initiate the Newberry master 
planning process. This approach aligns with the principles of equity, resource sharing, and coordinated 
growth. 

 
Given the immediate infrastructure and development pressures in the Cagle Subdivision, staff recommends 
that the City explore grant opportunities to support a focused planning effort there, starting as early as 
possible. 
 
 
Action Requested 
No formal action is required at this time. Staff is seeking consensus and direction from the City Council on 
which project should be prioritized for planning and grant application purposes. 

 

103



1

Brent Bybee

From: Peter Gutowsky <Peter.Gutowsky@deschutes.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 3, 2025 12:30 PM
To: Brent Bybee
Cc: Nick Lelack; Kristie Bollinger
Subject: Re: Newberry Neighborhood Master Planning

Brent, 
 
Thanks for the phone conversaƟon yesterday aŌernoon.  I appreciated your remarks. As discussed, Nick Lelack, KrisƟe 
Bollinger, and I met last Friday and determined Deschutes County is not ready to iniƟate a master plan for the Newberry 
Neighborhood. Two factors influenced this perspecƟve: 
 

 Quadrants 2a and 2d are currently listed for sale.  WaiƟng approximately 6 to 12 months to see if one or both 
quadrants sell will be an indicator of market readiness for subdividing approximately 37 acres in La Pine and the 
Ɵmeliness of master planning Neighborhoods 3 and 4. This period also allows for the compleƟon of the sewer liŌ 
staƟon. 
 

 The Community Development Department (CDD) does not have adequate funding in Fund 297, Newberry 
Neighborhood, to pay for a master plan that can allow residents and stakeholders to understand the 
development potenƟal and infrastructure needs for creaƟng complete communiƟes consisƟng of mixed-uses, 
housing, and open space in Neighborhoods 3 and 4.  Based on the Request for Proposal, the results of a master 
plan could also inform zoning code amendments to allow for a range of housing types and mixed uses at 
strategic locaƟons along Burgess and/or HunƟngton roads, and elsewhere. 

 
However, just because the Ɵming is not perfect for Deschutes County, it may be, in the near term for the City of La Pine. 
Deschutes County is supporƟve of the City of La Pine leading this effort if you have the resources. TransportaƟon Growth 
Management funds may also be available, among others, through the Department of Land ConservaƟon and 
Development. 
 
CDD, Property Management, and County AdministraƟon (and of course the Board of County Commissioners) appreciate 
the partnership with the City of La Pine on this important project. 
 
Let me know if you have any quesƟons or comments. 
 

 

Peter Gutowsky, AICP | Director  
D E SCHU TE S C OUNTY COMMU NITY D E VE LOPME NT 
117 NW Lafayette Avenue | Bend, Oregon 97703 
Tel: (541) 385-1709 

  
Enhancing the lives of citizens by delivering quality services in a cost-effective manner.  
 
 

104



 

 

 
CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2025 
 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Geoff Wullschlager, City Manager  
 

SUBJECT: Rate Adjustments (Solid Waste)  

[X] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[ ] Formal Motion  [ ] Other/Direction: Please see below 
  
 
Councilmembers: 

 
As furnished by Republic Services, please find attached their annual report that provides actual financials for 2024 and 
projected financials for 2025. These reports are self-explanatory and provide you with an accounting of revenues and 
expenditures for the last annual fiscal year and what Republic expects to occur by close of annual fiscal year 2025. It 
should be noted that Republic is asking for a 6% rate increase for the upcoming year, while traditionally the city has 
been asked to grant a 3% increase year over year.  
 
With this request, the city thought it was prudent to take measurement over the last three years based on raw data 
provided by Republic to review the request in a spreadsheet format in addition to a graph which are provided as 
attachments to this report.  
 
The following documents are provided for your consideration: 
 

1. Master Spreadsheet: This analysis shows actuals and compares the figures to projected figures (and actuals 
where available) for the following measurement periods: 

a. 2022-2023 
b. 2023-2024 
c. 2025 – 2025 

 
This analysis also displays the percentage of change year over year, again in both actuals, and actuals to 
projected amounts, to provide insight into where revenues are gaining or falling, in addition to expenditures. 
It also yields net income figures to provide you with the bottom line of fiscal performance for Republic 
Services during the measurement period.  
 
 
 
 
 

105



2. Spreadsheet Summary: This document offers the distilled data of the major categories of the Master 
Spreadsheet, and removes the projections between 22’ and 23’, and 23’ and 24’, providing you with a clear 
view of the percentage of chang in these categories, with only the period of 24’ to 25’ set with projected final 
(25’) numbers as the year has not closed out yet. This elicits a clearer representation of Republic’s 
performance in La Pine over the measurement period.  
 

3. Republic Services Financial Analysis: 
 

This final document is a pictorial charting of the data contained in the Spreadsheet Summary and yields a 
representation of the same major categories as a comparison against one another. It should be noted that 
as annual fiscal year 25’ has yet to conclude, we are working with Republics projections, the actuals may not 
meet the anticipated figures.  

 
Takeaways:  
 
Revenues - Have dramatically increased as a function of both measurements (actual to actual & actual to 
projected) in three cycle measurement period as displayed on the left margin of the graph. 
 
Operating Costs – These have also substantially increased over the three cycles. With the projected cycle of 
24-25 exhibiting the highest projected figures. 
 
Total Geneal Administrative Costs – These follow suit with operating costs, but in a more pronounced fashion. 
The primary difference is that the previous period of 24-25 displays the lowest expenses for an annual period 
while the current fiscal year displays the highest.  
 
Total Operating Costs - These are the aggregate or total expenditure figures which mimic the Total General 
Administrative Costs category, displaying the lowest of the last measurement period and the highest for the 
year that has yet to close out.  
 
Net Operating Income - This measurement displays a rapid increase in revenues in 23-24, of 183% over the 
previous year, and shows the expectations of high returns for the current year.  
 
Other Income – This is flat for all measurement periods as no values have been reported for any of the years.  
 
Net Income – This category represents that actual performance of income after accounting for expenditures, 
in terms of net profit. The last measurement year reports the rapid increases realized from 23-24 and displays 
a modest reduction as anticipated for the current period.  
 
Rate Increase - This is a function of the rate increases (3% for the previous two periods and 6% requested for 
the upcoming period) against all other categories.  

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
At the time of this report, and after reviewing the raw data and associated performance as charted in the Financial 
Analysis, I do not recommend providing an increase of 6% to our constituents and rate payers. It should be noted that 
there is a downward trend, based on projected year close out figures from Republic, but it is not so significant as to 
justify doubling the customary 3% increase. It should also be noted that in the City’s annual budget process for the 
upcoming fiscal year, the western region CPI (Consumer Price Index) suggested an inflationary rate of 2.99% which 
would be consistent with a 3% rate increase. It is also suggested that based on this data, and what has been 
demonstrated as a modest downturn for Republic, that figures will be analyzed in the next cycle for further 
consideration of a rate increase over the customary annual 3%.  
 
You have been provided with two separate, possible resolutions in considering Republic’s request, one representing 
a 3% amendment to the current rate which is supported by this report and analysis, and a 6% amendment if the 
Council is moved to consider this higher adjustment.  
 
 
 
 

106



In either case, if the Council is inclined to provide Republic Services with a rate adjustment, please make the following 
motion:  

1. I move to approve Resolution 2025-07: Make a motion to approve Resolution 2025-07, a Resolution 
Adjusting and Fixing Solid Waste Rate at the rate of ____% to be Charged by Franchise in the City of La Pine, 
followed by a second, and a roll call vote.  

 

107



MASTER SPREADSHEET

2022 Actual 2023 Projection Precentage of Change 2023 Actual Precentage of Change 2024 Projection Precentage of Change 2024 Actual Precentage of Change 2025 Projection Precentage of Change
Repubic Services 2022 Actual to 2023 Actual 2023 Actual to 2024 Actual

Revenues

Collection 778,149.00$        801,339.00$       3% 872,866.00$  12% 953,627.00$                            9% 980,753.00$                                  12% 1,015,374.00$                    4%
Recycling Material Sales 4,659.00$              466.00$                  -90% 2,491.00$        -47% 2,491.00$                                  0% 4,802.00$                                        93% 4,802.00$                               0%
Other Revenue -$                           -$                     -$                                               -$                                                     -$                                            

782,808.00$        801,805.00$       2% 875,357.00$  12% 956,118.00$                            9% 985,555.00$                                  13% 1,020,176.00$                    4%

Operating Costs/Collectoin Costs

Wages 147,717.00$        160,854.00$       9% 147,402.00$  0% 160,425.00$                            9% 157,717.00$                                  7% 165,975.00$                         5%
Payroll Taxes 16,371.00$           17,895.00$          9% 16,023.00$     -2% 16,843.00$                               5% 17,003.00$                                     6% 17,252.00$                            1%
Employee Beneftis 24,872.00$           27,217.00$          9% 24,052.00$     -3% 25,655.00$                               7% 33,152.00$                                     38% 34,666.00$                            5%
Fuel and Oll 44,407.00$           45,739.00$          3% 39,877.00$     -10% 42,822.00$                               7% 40,110.00$                                     1% 40,718.00$                            2%
Repairs and Mainteneance - Trucks 14,072.00$           14,494.00$          3% 11,172.00$     -21% 11,916.00$                               7% 15,725.00$                                     41% 16,639.00$                            6%
Depreciation 86,047.00$           62,107.00$          -28% 56,894.00$     -34% 64,435.00$                               13% 64,830.00$                                     14% 64,830.00$                            0%
Disposal Costs 113,896.00$        149,278.00$       31% 150,496.00$  32% 177,933.00$                            18% 199,694.00$                                  33% 216,271.00$                         8%
Other Operating Costs 6,163.00$              6,348.00$             3% 7,200.00$        17% 7,600.00$                                  6% 2,601.00$                                        -64% 2,738.00$                               5%

453,545.00$        483,932.00$       7% 453,116.00$  0% 507,629.00$                            12% 530,832.00$                                  17% 559,089.00$                         5%

General Adminsitrative Costs

Adminstrative Salaries 11,284.00$           12,056.00$          7% 25,247.00$     124% 27,088.00$                               7% 30,684.00$                                     22% 32,703.00$                            7%
Payroll Taxes 1,876.00$              2,004.00$             7% 4,208.00$        124% 4,515.00$                                  7% 5,114.00$                                        22% 5,450.00$                               7%
Employee Benefits 2,679.00$              3,303.00$             23% 5,611.00$        109% 6,020.00$                                  7% 6,819.00$                                        22% 7,267.00$                               7%
Advertising and promotion 1,021.00$              1,062.00$             4% 978.00$            -4% 1,033.00$                                  6% 1,887.00$                                        93% 1,986.00$                               5%
Professional Fees 816.00$                  849.00$                  4% 32.00$               -96% 34.00$                                          6% 104.00$                                            225% 109.00$                                    5%
Telephone and Utilities 2,914.00$              3,144.00$             8% 2,473.00$        -15%  2,611.00$                                  6% 2,852.00$                                        15% 3,001.00$                               5%
Taxes and Licenses 7,470.00$              7,728.00$             3% 9,754.00$        31% 10,295.00$                               6% 11,308.00$                                     16% 11,481.00$                            2%
Dues and Subscriptions 663.00$                  689.00$                  4% 581.00$            -12% 613.00$                                       6% 519.00$                                            -11% 546.00$                                    5%
Rent 21,235.00$           23,783.00$          12% 23,015.00$     8% 24,293.00$                               6% 27,132.00$                                     18% 28,551.00$                            5%
Office Expenses 3,868.00$              4,023.00$             4% 2,343.00$        -39% 2,473.00$                                  6% 1,191.00$                                        -49% 1,253.00$                               5%
Meals, Travel and Entertainment 646.00$                  671.00$                  4% 1,140.00$        76% 1,203.00$                                  6% 1,905.00$                                        67% 2,005.00$                               5%
Management Fees 74,847.00$           80,215.00$          7% 61,039.00$     -18% 71,924.00$                               18% 75,301.00$                                     23% 76,900.00$                            2%
Miscellaneous 12,981.00$           13,060.00$          1% 12,491.00$     -4% 15,073.00$                               21% 14,315.00$                                     15% 16,988.00$                            19%
Depreciation 224.00$                  224.00$                  0% 221.00$            -1% 221.00$                                       0% 171.00$                                            -23% 171.00$                                    0%
Insurance 17,414.00$           24,728.00$          42% 112,581.00$  546% 118,829.00$                            6% (59,954.00)$                                   -153% 19,371.00$                            -132%
Bad Debts 682.00$                  702.00$                  3% 4,774.00$        600% 5,039.00$                                  6% -$                                                     -100% -$                                            
Franchise Fees 54,227.00$           55,854.00$          3% 60,793.00$     12% 66,928.00$                               10% 66,999.00$                                     10% 71,412.00$                            7%

Total General Administratie Costs 214,847.00$        234,095.00$       9% 327,281.00$  52% 358,192.00$                            9% 186,347.00$                                  -43% 279,194.00$                         50%

Total Operating Costs 668,392.00$        718,027.00$       7% 780,397.00$  17% 865,821.00$                            11% 717,179.00$                                  -8% 838,283.00$                         17%

Net Operating Income (Loss) 114,416.00$        83,778.00$          -27% 94,960.00$     -17% 90,297.00$                               -5% 268,376.00$                                  183% 181,893.00$                         -32%

Other Income - Gain on Sale of Assets -$                           -$                           -$                     -$                                               -$                                                     -$                                            

Net Income (Loss) 114,416.00$        83,778.00$          -27% 94,960.00$     -17% 90,297.00$                               -5% 268,376.00$                                  183% 181,893.00$                         -32%

108



 

109



 

110



ATTACHMENT  B

Republic Services of Oregon (Wilderness Garbage & Recycling)
(Reporting Periods - January 1st through December 31st)
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ANNUAL REPORT FORM
CITY OF LA PINE
CURRENT YEAR FISCAL INFORMATION

2024
Actual

REVENUES
Collection 980,753$             
Recycling Material Sales 4,802$                 
Other Revenue -$                    

TOTAL REVENUES 985,555$             

OPERATING COSTS
COLLECTION COSTS

Wages 157,717$             
Payroll Taxes 17,003$               
Employee Benefits 33,152$               
Fuel and Oil 40,110$               
Repairs and Maintenance - Trucks 15,725$               
Depreciation 64,830$               
Disposal Costs 199,694$             
Other OperatingCosts 2,601$                 

TOTAL COLLECTION COSTS 530,834$             

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
Administrative salaries 30,684$               
Payroll taxes 5,114$                 
Employee benefits 6,819$                 
Advertising and promotion 1,887$                 
Professional Fees 104$                    
Telephone and Utilities 2,852$                 
Taxes and Licenses 11,308$               
Dues and Subscriptions 519$                    
Rent 27,132$               
Office Expenses 1,191$                 
Meals, Travel and Entertainment 1,905$                 
Management Fees 75,301$               
Miscellaneous 14,315$               
Depreciation 171$                    
Insurance (59,954)$              
Bad Debts -$                    
Franchise Fees 66,999$               111



ATTACHMENT  B

Republic Services of Oregon (Wilderness Garbage & Recycling)
(Reporting Periods - January 1st through December 31st)
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ANNUAL REPORT FORM
CITY OF LA PINE
CURRENT YEAR FISCAL INFORMATION

2024
Actual

TOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE COSTS 186,344$             

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 717,178$             

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 268,377$             

OTHER INCOME
Gain on Sale of Assets -$                    

NET INCOME (LOSS) 268,377$             

112



ATTACHMENT  B

Republic Services of Oregon (Wilderness Garbage & Recycling)
(Reporting Periods - January 1st through December 31st)
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ANNUAL REPORT FORM
CITY OF LA PINE
CURRENT YEAR FISCAL INFORMATION

REVENUES
Collection
Recycling Material Sales
Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

OPERATING COSTS
COLLECTION COSTS

Wages
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Fuel and Oil
Repairs and Maintenance - Trucks
Depreciation
Disposal Costs
Other OperatingCosts

TOTAL COLLECTION COSTS

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
Administrative salaries
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Advertising and promotion
Professional Fees
Telephone and Utilities
Taxes and Licenses
Dues and Subscriptions
Rent
Office Expenses
Meals, Travel and Entertainment
Management Fees
Miscellaneous
Depreciation
Insurance
Bad Debts
Franchise Fees

2025
Projection

1,015,374$          
4,802$                 

-$                    

1,020,176$          

165,975$             
17,252$               
34,666$               
40,718$               
16,639$               
64,830$               

216,271$             
2,738$                 

559,088$             

32,703$               
5,450$                 
7,267$                 
1,986$                 

109$                    
3,001$                 

11,481$               
546$                    

28,551$               
1,253$                 
2,005$                 

76,900$               
16,988$               

171$                    
19,371$               

-$                    
71,412$               113



ATTACHMENT  B

Republic Services of Oregon (Wilderness Garbage & Recycling)
(Reporting Periods - January 1st through December 31st)
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ANNUAL REPORT FORM
CITY OF LA PINE
CURRENT YEAR FISCAL INFORMATION

REVENUES
TOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE COSTS

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME
Gain on Sale of Assets

NET INCOME (LOSS)

2025
Projection

279,194$             

838,282$             

181,894$             

-$                    

181,894$             

114



RESOLUTION 2025-07 

CITY OF LA PINE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-07 

A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING AND FIXING SOLID WASTE RATES TO BE 
CHARGED BY FRANCHISEE IN THE CITY OF LA PINE 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance NO. 2007-3, known by reference as the Solid 
Waste Management and Franchise Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3A. (2) states changes in rates shall be made by resolution and order of the 
Council; and  

WHEREAS, Section 3A. (3) states that franchise shall provide sixty (60) days written notice of 
rate change with accompanying justification of proposed rate change changes; and 

WHERAS, Section 3A. (3)(a) states applications shall be filed by franchisee prior to May 1 of any 
given year; and  

WHERSAS; Section 3A. (3)(b) states that unless there is good cause shown and recorded in the 
minutes of the Council, the Council shall act upon any rate adjustment by June 30, and the 
adjustment shall take effect on July 1; and  

WHERAS, Ordinance NO. 2020-06, an Ordinance of City of La Pine Amending Ordinance NO. 
2007-03, which Ordinance Granted La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc. (“Wilderness”) an Exclusive 
Franchise and Right to Provide Solid Waste Management Services in the City of La Pine, and 
Consenting to La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc’s Assignment, and Allied Waste Transfer Services of 
Oregon, LLC’s (“Republic”) Assumption, of all La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc’s. Rights, Interests, and 
Obligations Arising out of or under the Franchise Granted Under Ordinance NO. 2007-03; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Transaction, Republic desired to acquire all Wilderness’s 
rights, interests, and obligations arising out of and/or under the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, under Ordinance NO. 2020-06, adopted on June 17, 2020, the City consented to 
Wilderness’s assignment of the Franchise Agreement (including Wilderness’s franchise rights and 
interests arising thereunder) to Republic and Republic’s assumption of Wilderness’s obligations 
arising out of or under the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHERAS, Under Ordinance NO. 2020-06, Section (8), Ordinance, NO. 2020-06 was made part 
of the original Franchise Agreement and the provisions of the Franchise Agreement not amended or 
modified by Ordinance NO. 2020-06 remained unchanged and in full force and effect; and  

WHERAS, Sections 3A. (2), 3A. (3), 3A. (3)(a), and 3A. (3)(b) of Ordinance NO. 2007-03 have not 
been amended or modified by Ordinance No. 2020-06. 

NOW THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED THAT: 

Section 1. Effective July 1. 2025, solid waste rates within the City of La Pine shall be uniform 
for the same service and shall not exceed a 3% increase over rates established for FY 24-25.  

115



RESOLUTION 2025-07 

Section 2. This resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City Council. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND MADE EFFECTIVE by the La Pine City Council on June 11, 2025. 

______________________________ 

Jeannine Earls, Mayor 

Attest: 

Amanda Metcalf, City Recorder 

116



RESOLUTION 2025-07 

CITY OF LA PINE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-07 

A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING AND FIXING SOLID WASTE RATES TO BE 
CHARGED BY FRANCHISEE IN THE CITY OF LA PINE 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance NO. 2007-3, known by reference as the Solid 
Waste Management and Franchise Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3A. (2) states changes in rates shall be made by resolution and order of the 
Council; and  

WHEREAS, Section 3A. (3) states that franchise shall provide sixty (60) days written notice of 
rate change with accompanying justification of proposed rate change changes; and 

WHERAS, Section 3A. (3)(a) states applications shall be filed by franchisee prior to May 1 of any 
given year; and  

WHERSAS; Section 3A. (3)(b) states that unless there is good cause shown and recorded in the 
minutes of the Council, the Council shall act upon any rate adjustment by June 30, and the 
adjustment shall take effect on July 1; and  

WHERAS, Ordinance NO. 2020-06, an Ordinance of City of La Pine Amending Ordinance NO. 
2007-03, which Ordinance Granted La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc. (“Wilderness”) an Exclusive 
Franchise and Right to Provide Solid Waste Management Services in the City of La Pine, and 
Consenting to La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc’s Assignment, and Allied Waste Transfer Services of 
Oregon, LLC’s (“Republic”) Assumption, of all La Pine Disposal & Recycling, Inc’s. Rights, Interests, and 
Obligations Arising out of or under the Franchise Granted Under Ordinance NO. 2007-03; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Transaction, Republic desired to acquire all Wilderness’s 
rights, interests, and obligations arising out of and/or under the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, under Ordinance NO. 2020-06, adopted on June 17, 2020, the City consented to 
Wilderness’s assignment of the Franchise Agreement (including Wilderness’s franchise rights and 
interests arising thereunder) to Republic and Republic’s assumption of Wilderness’s obligations 
arising out of or under the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHERAS, Under Ordinance NO. 2020-06, Section (8), Ordinance, NO. 2020-06 was made part 
of the original Franchise Agreement and the provisions of the Franchise Agreement not amended or 
modified by Ordinance NO. 2020-06 remained unchanged and in full force and effect; and  

WHERAS, Sections 3A. (2), 3A. (3), 3A. (3)(a), and 3A. (3)(b) of Ordinance NO. 2007-03 have not 
been amended or modified by Ordinance No. 2020-06. 

NOW THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED THAT: 

Section 1. Effective July 1. 2025, solid waste rates within the City of La Pine shall be uniform 
for the same service and shall not exceed a 6% increase over rates established for FY 24-25.  

117



RESOLUTION 2025-07 

Section 2. This resolution is effective immediately upon its enactment by the City Council. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND MADE EFFECTIVE by the La Pine City Council on June 11, 2025. 

______________________________ 

Jeannine Earls, Mayor 

Attest: 

Amanda Metcalf, City Recorder 

118


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Republic 2025 Master Spreadsheet.pdf
	Sheet1




